
Page | 1 
 
 



Page | 2 
 
 



Page | 3 
 

 

 

 

 



Page | 4 
 
 

 

Contents 
PART A:  GENERAL INFORMATION .................................................................................................................. 6 

1. PUBLIC ENTITY’S GENERAL INFORMATION ........................................................................................... 7 

2. LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS .................................................................................................... 8 

3. FOREWORD BY THE CHAIRPERSON .................................................................................................... 11 

4. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW ........................................................................................... 10 

5. ARTISTIC DIRECTOR REPORT’S REPORT ................................................................................................. 9 

6. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT . 13 

7. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW ........................................................................................................................ 14 

7.1. Vision .......................................................................................................................................... 14 

7.2. Mission ........................................................................................................................................ 14 

7.3. Values ......................................................................................................................................... 14 

8. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES ................................................................................................. 15 

9. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE ........................................................................................................... 17 

PART B: PERFORMANCE INFORMATION ....................................................................................................... 18 

1. AUDITOR’S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES ......................................................................... 19 

2. SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS ....................................................................................................................... 19 

2.1. Organisational environment ........................................................................................................... 19 

2.2. Key policy developments and legislative changes ............................................................................ 20 

2.3. Strategic Outcome Oriented Goals ................................................................................................. 20 

3. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME/ ACTIVITY/ OBJECTIVE ........................................... 21 

3.1. Programme 1 ............................................................................................................................... 21 

3.2. Programme 2 ............................................................................................................................... 24 

3.3. Programme 3 ............................................................................................................................... 28 

4. REVENUE COLLECTION ....................................................................................................................... 33 

4.1. Capital investment ........................................................................................................................ 34 

PART C: GOVERNANCE.................................................................................................................................. 36 

1. INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................................................... 37 

2. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES  .................................................................................................................. 37 

3. EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY .................................................................................................................................. 37 

4. THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY / BOARD ............................................................................................. 37 

5. RISK MANAGEMENT ............................................................................................................................. 41 

6. INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT ................................................................................................................... 42 



Page | 5 
 
 

 

7. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES ......................................................................................... 42 

8. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS .................................................................................... 44 

 

9. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION ................................................................................................................... 44 

10. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST ................................................................................................... 45 

11. HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES ................................................................................. 45 

12. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ..................................................................................................................... 45 

PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT ................................................................................................. 46 

1. INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................................................... 48 

2. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS ...................................................................................... 49 

PART E: FINANCIAL INFORMATION ................................................................................................................ 53 

1. REPORT OF THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR ................................................................................................. 54 

2. ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ............................................................................................................. ….59 

 

 

 

 



Page | 6 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PART A:  GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page | 7 
 
 

 

1. PUBLIC ENTITY’S GENERAL INFORMATION  

 

REGISTERED NAME:          Performing Arts Centre of the Free State 

PHYSICAL ADDRESS:       12 First Avenue  

Westdene 

Bloemfontein 

9301 

POSTAL ADDRESS:     P.O. Box 1292 

     Bloemfontein 

     9301 

 

TELEPHONE NUMBER/S:    051 – 447 7771 

FAX NUMBER:     051 – 430 5523 

EMAIL ADDRESS:     ceo@pacofs.co.za 

WEBSITE ADDRESS:    www.pacofs.co.za 

EXTERNAL AUDITORS:    Auditor South Africa General 

ABSA Forum Building 

19 Donald Murray Avenue 

Bloemfontein 

      9300 

INTERNAL AUDITORS   Ramabulana Management Services 

BANKERS:     ABSA Bank  

ATTORNEYS    Kramer, Weideman & Joubert 

Hill, McHardy & Herbst 

http://www.pacofs.co.za/
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2. LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS 

 

An alphabetic list acronyms/ abbreviations stating what each acronym/ abbreviation stand for: 

  

PACOFS: Performing Arts Centre of the Free State 

PAC: Performing Arts Council 

DAC: Department of Arts and Culture 

DSACR: Department of Sports, Arts, Culture and Recreation 

MACUFE: Mangaung African Cultural Festival 

MOU: Memorandum of Understanding 

SARA: South African Roadies Association 

A-G: Auditor South Africa General 

CFO: Chief Financial Officer 

CEO: Chief Executive Officer 
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3. FOREWORD BY THE CHAIRPERSON 

 

Minister, it is with great pleasure that I submit the 2014/2015 annual report on behalf of the PACOFS Council, reflecting on its activities 
and on how this public entity manages its resources and fulfil its mandate in accordance with the provisions of the Public Finance 
Management Act, 1999 (Act 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and the Cultural Institutions, 1998 (Act No. 119 of 1998).  

  

Having taken office in December 2014, we acknowledge the work done by the previous Council and the newly appointed 
Council wishes to continue building on the past successes and is committed to the implementation of strategies that will address 
the shortcomings in the Institution. The turnaround strategies will be aimed at positive audit outcomes, prioritized compliance 
and good governance systems to ensure clean administration, accountability and governance. 
 
The Institution currently faces a number of governance challenges, as a result of amongst others, the resignation of the newly 
appointed Chairperson and the suspension of the Chief Executive Officer. 
 
Whilst it is pleasing to note that the Auditor-General expressed an unqualified opinion on the annual financial statements, 
Council not satisfied with the overall performance of the Institution.  
 
Council noted the shortcomings identified by the Auditor-General as reported in their respective audit and management reports 
will ensure that Management draft an audit action plan to address these shortcomings. Urgent steps will be taken to reduce and 
avoid the reoccurrence of irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure. The weaknesses identified in the report on predetermined 
objectives will similarly be addressed to ensure greater management and accountability to the South African citizenry. 
 
We would like to record our sincerest gratitude and appreciation to the Management, especially the Acting CEO, and staff of PACOFS 
who remain committed to the Institution despite the various challenges it is facing. Council will consider the implantation of a Human 
Resources Plan aimed at enhancing staff morale; employee wellness and performance management. 
   
We would also like to thank the Department of Arts and Culture and Parliament’s Portfolio Committee on Arts & Culture for their 
guidance and support and commitment to ensure a turnaround within Pacofs.  
 

We are hopeful that the trajectory on which the new Council and Management has embarked will help us to uphold the fiduciary 
responsibilities and ideals expected from an institution such as us. 

 

 

……………………………………. 

Mrs P.F. Lourens 

Chairperson of the Council 

Performing Arts Centre of the Free State 

Date: 22 September 2015 
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4. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S OVERVIEW 

                            

The Performing Arts Centre of the Free State (PACOFS) has realised significant successes in its aspirations to be the leading 

public performing arts institution in the Free State. PACOFS has presented a diverse artistic programme and has also taken the 

arts to communities within the Free State Province. PACOFS will progressively up-skill its employees starting management with 

business and financial management skills and this process will be filtered down to employees. 

PACOFS operates in the Free State Province as an entity of the National Department of Arts and Culture.  PACOFS has 

focussed on the main artistic and developing sector, sourcing its strengths from the national Government service delivery and 

key priorities. Its programming is focused on delivering effective, efficient and reliable products to its customers namely artists 

and general services providers 

The institution aims to ensure that the artistic content presented on its stages is based on a multicultural consciousness with 

artistic products that will attract and entertain audiences. 

As such, PACOFS constantly adapts its business strategies to address the national imperatives to build a robust economy, 

create job opportunities, promote social cohesion and transfer skills for sustainable growth, especially in the arts and culture 

sector across a wide spectrum. 

Management is aware of the improvements that are required in our compliance environment and performance management.  

PACOFS management has identified the lack of capacity in the finance and marketing departments, and is in a process of 

closing those gaps.   The turnaround Strategy plan by the current council will address the low staff moral and mistrust between 

management and employees. The collaboration with other entities has been identified as key to bring the institution to the level 

of others in terms of effective and efficiency. 

Taking this iconic institution to a level of performance that will be best described as sound and impressive, requires success in a 

number of crucial business areas. This includes cleaning up our administration by strengthening the internal controls to the 

quality level required by the Auditor-General of South Africa and Good Governance, providing entertainment and recreation that 

is complemented by the quality of our facilities. These key drivers will be implemented in the financial year 2015/16 and 

continuously monitored. 

Management team and I wish to express our warm appreciation to the PACOFS Council, the National Department of Arts and 

Culture, the Free State Provincial Government, our dedicated staff, and our generous sponsors in helping PACOFS achieve its 

goal of uniting all relevant stakeholders internal and external for the betterment of our Free State province and South Africa at 

large. 

 

 

…………………………………………. 

Mr. N. Salimani 

Acting Chief Executive Officer 

Performing Arts Centre of the Free State 

Date: 22 September 2015 

*At the Date Signing of the Amended Annual Report CEO was not Available, hence the Acting CEO signed 
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5. ARTISTIC DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 

INTRODUCTION 

This marks the first year of my tenure as Artistic Director.  It was thus a year of adjustments, laying foundation and 
experimentation in the organisation of different units under the umbrella of Artistic Directorate.  The 3 units – Productions, 
Theatres and Development were key to the delivery of the core business, Stage department remained a support service to the 
success of the product on stage and at external venues.  Electro-Mechanical unit remained contested terrain with the 
Maintenance function of the institution. 

 
 

HIGHLIGHTS 
 

National and International Platforms. 

Moeder Moed. 

Moeder Moed premiered at PACOFS; ran to Critical acclaim and ticket sales at KKNK.  It got 6 Kanna nominations and won 3.  
It is now destined for Potchefstroom and Woord-fees in February 2016. 

A Distant Drum 

 This was written by the novelist Christopher Hope and featured his son Daniel Hope.  We finally performed this production at 
Carnegie Hall in New York - featured in the New York Times. 

First Stages 

This was the inaugural season of this project.  It featured 5 local productions that were identified through showcases and staged 
readings.  A mentor-director was engaged (Itumeleng Motsikoe) and we gave all the productions all the technical, creative and 
marketing support that we could.   The DAC introduction and financing of the INCUBATER programme is a major boost to this 
initiative. 

OFFSIDE (Showcase) 

Our professional relationship with Thambo Production Management gave birth to 2 productions – Offside and Masote’s Dream.  
In the fourth quarter of this financial year we staged a showcase of OFFSIDE which was filmed and taken to Netherlands for 
marketing to theatres there.  The latest news is that the production will be touring Netherlands for the period September til l 
December 2017.    

The Triumph 

MID team worked with local dancers. We presented our local talent in a manner we could not have if they were by themselves.  
The dancers from Welkom went on to do their own dance projects after this production. 

 

PROPOSALS / PLANS FOR THE FOR 2016/17. 

The ‘Incubator’ programme:  This programme had teething problems this year.  The time-lines are in jeopardy with the delays 

in authorisations and releases of funding from national Treasury.  The opportunity to run this programme for the next 2 years 
with guaranteed funding helps us to plan effectively for our Development Programmes and their contribution to Local Talent 
Development and Local Productions. 

 
Alignment to the DAC’s Priority Areas. 
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Social Cohesion and Nation Building  

 

 

Our efforts in the programming of our stages are meant to make PACOFS a people’s theatre, a home for all races, genders and 
age-group.  In this financial year the focus was more on the quality of the production.  We however made strides in promoting  

 

social cohesion with the productions that we mounted.  Blood Wedding was a case in point – multiracial, multi lingual on stage 
and in the audience. 

 

Skills Development – Improving on Skills Level 

As our report on APP will indicate – we have begun a thrust in our Development Programmes where we avoid making demands 
on artists and leaders without having given them the necessary skills to realise the goals that are expected of them.  We have 
thus provided training for Artists, Educators, Department of Education officials etc. 

Economic Development – Stimulate Local Economy 

Our flagship programme in this financial year was First Stages.  For the first time these young artists received a budget, mentors 
and all the personnel, technical and creative support to present their work in as professional a platform as we could muster.   

Development, Preservation and Promotion of Arts, Culture and Heritage - Creating an enabling and vibrant creative arts 
environment 

Commentary on the programmes presented – especially those that went beyond our borders indicate how PACOFS is a perfect 
‘Incubator’ for works destined for greatness on the global platform. 

 

 

……………………………………..  

Jerry Mofokeng 

Artistic Director 

 

Date: 22 September 2015 
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6. STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF ACCURACY FOR THE ANNUAL 
REPORT 

 

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I confirm the following:  

 

All information and amounts disclosed in the annual report is consistent with the annual financial statements audited by the 

Auditor South Africa General. 

 

The annual report is complete, accurate and is free from any omissions. 

 

The annual report has been prepared in accordance with the guidelines on the annual report as issued by National Treasury. 

 

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been prepared in accordance with the GRAP standards applicable to the public 

entity. 

 

The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements and for the judgements made in 

this information.   

 

The accounting authority is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal control has been designed to 

provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the performance information, the human resources information 

and the annual financial statements. 

 

The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements. 

 

In our opinion, the annual report fairly reflects the operations, the performance information, the human resources information 

and the financial affairs of the public entity for the financial year ended 31 March 2015. 

 

Yours faithfully  

 

  
______________________                    ______________________ 

Chairperson of the Council     Acting Chief Executive Officer 

Name: P.F. Lourens      Name: N. Salimani 

Date: 22 September 2015      Date: 22 September 2015 

 

 

*At the Date Signing of the Amended Annual Report CEO was not Available, hence the Acting CEO signed 
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7. STRATEGIC OVERVIEW 

 

7.1 Vision  

To be a leading performing Arts and celebration destination that provides access to all, to participate and experience cultural 

and arts activities across the Free State. 

 

7.2 Mission 

To use the arts as an instrument to encourage social cohesion and national building, through promotion, recognition 

and preservation of local and national heritage.  

To stimulate economic interest, participation and appreciation of art across racial barriers while soliciting international 

role players. 

 

7.3 Values 

PACOFS is committed to becoming a Performing Arts Centre that upholds constitutional values as well as Batho Pele 

Principles through: 

 

 Accountability 

 

An employee must be responsible and accountable in dealing with public funds, property and other resources. 

 

 Fairness 

 

This incorporates the following key values: 

Honesty  

Equality  

Application of systems & procedure 

Equitable Treatment  

 

 Commitment 

 

Seeing through: 

Completion of tasks 

Reliability of service  

Dedication  

Consistency 

 

 Communication 

 

Information Sharing  

Transparency  

Integrity 

Easily Accessible 
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Consultation 

Courtesy  

 Responsiveness 

 

Punctuality    Productivity; Turnaround time 

 

8. LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES 

 

PACOFS is an entity in existence under the Performing Arts Council (PAC). As a public entity reporting to the Department of 

Arts and Culture, PACOFS finds its constitution mandate entrenched in the primary legislative mandate of the department. All 

frameworks, systems, policies and procedures must be developed within the constitutional, legislative and policy mandates. 

From time to time, court rulings will guide practices within the entity 

8.1 Constitutional mandates 

The primary legislative mandate of the Department of Arts and Culture comes from the Constitution of the Republic of South 

Africa, which states that: 

Section 16(1) – "Everyone has the right to freedom of expression which includes - 

a)   freedom of press and other media; 

b)   freedom to receive or impact information or ideas; 

c)   freedom of artistic creativity; and 

d)   academic freedom and freedom of scientific research" 

Section 30 – "Everyone has the right to use language and to participate in the cultural life of their choice, but no one exercising 

these rights may do so in a manner inconsistent with any provision of the Bill of Rights”. 

Emanating from the White Paper on Arts, Culture and Heritage the following Acts have been promulgated by Parliament and 

institutions created in furtherance of the constitutional mandate of the Department of Arts and Culture: 

 National Heritage Resources Act, 1999 (Act No. 25 of 1999) 

 National Heritage Council Act, 1999 (Act No. 11 of 1999) 

 Cultural Institutions Act, 1998 (Act No. 119 of 1998) 

 South African Geographical Names Council Act, 1998 (Act No. 118 of 1998) 

 National Library of South Africa Act, 1998 (Act No. 92 of 1998) 

 South African Library for the Blind Act, 1998 (Act No. 91 of 1998) 

 National Film and Video Foundation Act, 1997 (Act No. 73 of 1997) 

 National Arts Council Act, 1997 (Act No. 56 of 1997) 

 Legal Deposit Act, 1997 (Act No. 54 of 1997) 

 National Archives and Record Service of South Africa Act, 1996 (Act No. 43 of 1996) 

 Pan South African Language Board Act, 1995 (Act No. 59 of 1995) 
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 Culture Promotion Act, 1983 (Act No. 35 of 1983) 

 

 

 Heraldry Act, 1962 (Act No. 18 of 1962) 

 

8.2    Legislative mandates 

PACOFS as a Public Entity furthermore will not only be guided by legislative mandates but also other legislation directly or 

indirectly impacting on the entity. The list mentioned below is not complete by any means but provide us with a working 

framework of legislative mandates governing our daily operations and responsibilities.  

 The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996. 

 Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (PFMA), Act of 1999 as amended by Act 29 of 1999 

 White Paper on Arts, Culture and Heritage 

 Cultural Institutions Act,1998 (Act No 119 of 1998) 

 Culture Promotion Act, 1983 (Act No 35 of 1983) 

 Competitions Act, 1998 (Act No 89 of 1998) 

 National Arts Council Act, 1997 (Act No 56 of 1997) 

 Labour Relations Act, 1995 (Act No 66 of 1995 updated 2002) 

 Occupational Health and Safety Act, 1993 (Act No 85 of 1993) 

 Employment Equity Act, 1998 (Act No 55 of 1998) 

 Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 1997 (Act No 75 of 1997) 

 Skills Development Act, 1998 (Act No 97 of 1998) 

 Skills Development Levy Act, 1999 (Act No 9 of 1999) 

 Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000 (Act No 2 of 2000) 

 Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, 2000 (Act No 5 of 2000) 

 Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, 2003 (Act No 53 of 2003) 

 Intellectual Property Laws Amendment Act, 1997 (Act No 38 of 1997) 

 Copyright Act, 1978 (Act No 98 of 1978) 

 Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, 2000 (Act No 3 of 2000) 

 Treasury Regulations  

 

 

 

 



Page | 17 
 
 

 

 

9. PACOFS ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PACOFS COUNCIL 

ARTISTIC 
COMMITTEE 

AUDIT & RISK 
COMMITTE 

HUMAN RESOURCE  
COMMITTE 

FINANCE COMMITTE 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER 

PERSONAL ASSISTANT 

ARTISTI DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL 
OFFICER 

INTERNAL AUDIT 
UNIT 

PERFORMING ARTS CENTRE OF THE FREE STATE 

AS PER STRATEGY 
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1. AUDITOR’S REPORT: PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES 

 

Refer to page 54 of the Auditors Report, published as Part E: Financial Information. 

 

2. SITUATIONAL ANALYSIS 

 

2.1. Organisational environment 

 

2014/2015 has been largely focused on making productions available at the theatre (whether produced or bought in). The 

2015/2016 financial year the organisation will put more focus on enforcing SMART principle on its APP in order to be able to 

measure its performance at end of the year. 

The last financial year has been largely focused on moving from being a presentation house to a production house with the 

emphasis on the audience and artistic development which aligns with the mandate from the shareholder as articulated in the 

outcome 14 of Department Arts and Culture. 

 The 2015/2016 financial year has marked the embedding of PACOFS focus from managing facilities and being a presentation 

house to incorporating the core business and evolving into a production house. In 2016/17 the support services will focus on 

review the turnaround strategy plan and the transparent management of a public entity through good governance.  The 

appointed Council has brought re-direction and focus and stressed the importance of the efficient management of the entity, 

along with building a high performance oriented organisation that embraces the highest standard of corporate governance. 

The creative economy is an evolving concept based on creative assets embracing economic, cultural, social and technological 

aspects. It can foster economic growth, job creation, export earnings while promoting social inclusion, cultural diversity and 

human development. PACOFS embraces this definition. 

In terms of its larger scopes, the creative economy is: 

Multi-dimensional incorporating development, culture, economic and social policies; 

Omnipresent in that it deals with aspects of education, labour leisure, culture and the arts; 

Inclusive of a wide range of developmental, commercial and non-profit activities; 

Regarded in global trade as both a public good and a public service. 

Theatre is an activity that deals with core life issues in both the production of work and the purpose built venues to house them. 

It is about celebration, community change, imagination and stories. There is a sense, however that the gulf is widening between 

artists and audiences causing audiences for the performing arts to decline. While there has been no research to quantify or 

explain this, it is generally thought to be because of competition for leisure business and particularly a loss of competitiveness in 

the face of music and film products. 

According to research conducted by the Performing Arts Network of South Africa (PANSA) in 2005, there are approximately 100 

theatres in South Africa offering 35 shows per year on average. Half (50%) are privately owned, 30% are supported by the three 

spheres of government and 20% are located within educational institutions. 

In general, the trends in South Africa as in other developing countries is to motivate for creative industries development in the 

broader social and economic objectives that have already achieved mainstream attention by government such as job creation, 

poverty alleviation, tourism development and community participation. In this way the cultural sector and creative industries 

become an instrument to achieve other goals and are able to receive funding through the fiscus. The Accelerated and Shared  
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Growth Initiative in South Africa (ASGISA) process represents one of the first indications that the sector “has value in its own 

right”. 

 

 

 

In order to achieve social inclusivity, PACOFS must strive to identify and obtain additional methods of direct subsidy for the 

disadvantaged communities in order to make theatre going practical for them. Ideally attendance at performances in theatres 

should be heavily subsidized throughout the year in order to create a new theatre audience in the future and drive towards social 

cohesion. PACOFS understanding is that the shareholder supports this perspective. 

  

 

2.1.1 Performance Delivery Environment 

 

As part of a set of current management capacity and resources available, a performance delivery environment has been 

established as robustly. The result of this is the development and implementation of a turnaround strategic plan will produce 

produced a clear targets and accountability to delivery on the strategic mandate. This APP based on Baseline Key Performance 

which has been implemented by the Department.   

 

 

2.1.1 Shift in focus 

 

In many respects, this is a new era for the PACOFS. 2015/2016 has been largely focused on making productions available at 

the theatre (whether produced or bought in). The 2015/2016 financial year has marked a clear shift in focus to align with 

National Priorities, particularly of the DAC. This shift is set to bring in new offerings, new revenue streams and, in some 

respects, a new business model for PACOFS. The 2016/2017 will build on this foundation incorporating lessons learned in the 

core business and greater rationing of resources. 

2.1.2 The Political Landscape 

 

Support for the success and growth of PACOFS has been positive and remains so. The possibilities of practically implementing 

a “More than you can imagine’ cultural precinct in the Free State and a PACOFS virtual store receives support in its alignment to 

the national vision and National Government Priorities. Continued efforts around job creation and skills development are 

supported. To further enhance this spirit of co-operation a stakeholder relationship building relationship management plan will 

be developed and implemented in 2016/2017. 

.  

2.2. Key policy developments and legislative changes 

 

There are no policy and legislative changes. 

 

2.3. Strategic Outcome Oriented Goals 
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3. PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME / ACTIVITY / OBJECTIVE 

 

In order to attain its mission the Performing Arts Centre of the Free State strives to achieve the below objectives: 

 

 

 

 
 
 

3.1 Programme 1 

 
PROGRAMME 1 : 
ADMINISTRATION 

        

Strategic Oriented Goal 2: To identify, develop and train specific target groups that can be deployed to improve the overall skill levels and increase the interest of people 
in the arts, resulting in an increased audience 

  

  No 
Key Performance 

Indicators 
Audited Baseline Annual Target 

Annual 
Achieved 

Target 

Variance 
(Actual vs 

Target) 

Variance 
Explanation 

  

To develop a love and 
interest for, and sound 
understanding of Arts 
and Culture within rural 
communities 

26 

Skills development 
committee 
constituted with 
terms of reference 
and members 
confirmed 

- 
New 

Indicator 

PACOFS 
constitutes a 

Skills 
development 
committee to 
ensure that all 
staff including 
technical staff 

have continuing 
professional 
development 

- 

PACOFS 
constitutes a 

Skills 
development 
committee to 
ensure that all 
staff including 
technical staff 

have continuing 
professional 

development 

Not Achieved Administration 
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To develop technical 
skills for both PACOFs 
and non PACOFs 
employees to generally 
improve technical skills 
levels 

27 

See HR measure 
regarding 
professional 
development plans 
(this is at an 
individual level not 
a consolidated APP 
level) 

- 
New 

Indicator 

All staff have 
signed off 
personal 

development 
plans (PDPs) 

- 

All staff have 
signed off 
personal 

development 
plans (PDPs) 

Not Achieved Administration 

Strategic Oriented Goal 3: To identify, develop and implement strategies to contribute to the New Growth Path   

Strategic Objective No 
Key Performance 

Indicators 
Audited Baseline Annual Target 

Annual 
Achieved 

Target 

Variance 
(Actual vs 

Target) 

Variance 
Explanation 

Responsible 
Unit 

  

29 

Development of an 
artist management 
agency within 
PACOFS to 
represent artists 
across the Free 
State Province and 
Lesotho 

- 
New 

indicator 

Business Case 
Approved. 250 

new artists 
represented 

and registered 
on database 

- 

1000 new 
artists 

represented 
and registered 

on database 

Not Achieved Administration 

30 

Development of 
business case for 
the establishment 
of PACOFS “more 
than you can 
imagine” cultural 
precincts 

- 
New 

indicator 
Business Case 

Approved 
- 

1 cultural 
precinct 

completed with 
10 SMMES 
involved 

Not Achieved Administration 

Strategic Oriented Goal 6: To provide and maintain high quality support services to the Council and department pertaining to sound financial management, human 
resource management, information technology, cleaning, transport and security administration 

  

Strategic Objective No 
Key Performance 

Indicators 
Audited Baseline Annual Target 

Annual 
Achieved 

Target 

Variance 
(Actual vs 

Target) 

Variance 
Explanation 

Responsible 
Unit 

  37 
Number of Exco 
meetings 

- 12 12 3 -9 Not Achieved 
Office of the 
CEO 

  38 
Number of Council 
meetings held 

- 4 4 2 -2 Achieved 
Office of the 
CEO 

  39 

Number of Council 
self-assessments 
completed in 
respect of the 
performance of the 
Board and in 
Council 
Committees. 

- - 1 0 -1 Not Achieved 
Office of the 
CEO 

Strategic Oriented Goal 6: To provide and maintain high quality support services to the Council and department pertaining to sound financial management, human 
resource management, information technology, cleaning, transport and security administration 

  

Strategic Objective No 
Key Performance 

Indicators 
Audited Baseline Annual Target 

Annual 
Achieved 

Target 

Variance 
(Actual vs 

Target) 

Variance 
Explanation 

Responsible 
Unit 
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40 
Development of 
Annual Report 

- Developed 

2013/2014 
annual report 
developed and 

approved by 
June 2014 

2013/14 AR 
approved by 

Jun 2014. 

2015/2016 
annual report 

developed and 
approved by 

June 2016 

Achieved 
Office of the 
CFO 

41 
% of internal audit 
findings resolved  
(division specific) 

- 
New 

indicator 
0 older than 3 

months 
- - Not Achieved Internal Audit 

42 
Nature of Audit 
Opinion 

- 
Un- Qualified 
Audit Report 

Un- Qualified 
Audit Report 

n/a 
Clean Audit 

Report 
Not Achieved CEO 

To ensure sound 
financial management of 
all PACOFS revenue 
sources and  safeguard 
the assets of the Project 

43 
Fixed Asset Register 
Completed and 
maintained 

- 
New 

Indicator 

A completed 
fixed asset 

register is in 
place 

66% -34% Achieved 
CFO and 
Internal Audit 

44 
No. of irregular 
expenditure cases 
reported 

- 
Zero Cases 
of Irregular 
Expenditure 

Zero Cases of 
Irregular 

Expenditure 
11 -11 Not Achieved   

45 
% expenditure of 
PACOFS budget 

  
New 

Indicator 

0% over 
expenditure and 

<15% positive 
variance or 

saving 

18% 3% Achieved CFO  

46 
% of BBBEE 
expenditure 
awarded to HDI’s. 

- - 
15% of actual 

spend 
15% - Achieved CFO  

To maintain a culture 
and practice of 
compliance with 
legislation and policies 

47 
Completion of 
annual policy 
reviews 

- 
New 

indicator 

100% policies 
reviewed by end 

of 1st quarter 
- 

100% policies 
reviewed by 

end of 1st 
quarter 

Not Achieved Administration 

48 
Establish workplace 
forum 

- 
New 

Indicator 
6 meetings  1 -5 meetings Not Achieved Administration 

To contribute to the 
achievement and 
development of PACOFS 
as a high performing 
organisation 

49 

Level of 
implementation of 
an organisational 
performance 
management 
system aligned to 
the APP 

- 
New 

Indicator 
100% 

implemented 
50% 

50% 
implemented 

Not Achieved Administration 

50 

Development of a 
talent, succession 
and retention 
strategy for PACOFS 

- 
New 

Indicator 

Strategy 
Developed and 

Approved by 
Council 

- 
Strategy fully 
implemented 

Not Achieved Administration 

51 

Development of a 
leadership model 
and peer review 
tool for PACOFS 

- 
New 

Indicator 
Tool fully 

developed 
- 

Tool fully 
implemented 

Not Achieved Administration 

Ensure a secure and 
reliable information  
technology environment 

52 

% completion and 
compliance with IT 
disaster recovery 
strategy and plan 

- 
Monthly 

management 
maintained 

Monthly 
management 

- 
Monthly 

management 
Not Achieved Administration 
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Ensure the effective 
identification and 
mitigation of risks across 
all functions 

53 

% mitigation 
actions in risk 
registers 
implemented or up 
to date  

- - 90% 0% -90% Not Achieved Administration 

Ensure effective Security 
Services 

56 
Develop security 
Policy and Plan 

- 
New 

Indicator 
Policy and plan 

developed 
- 

Policy and plan 
implemented 

Not Achieved Administration 

57 
Manage 
Surveillance System 

- 
New 

Indicator 
12 monthly 

reports 
12 

0 monthly 
reports 

Achieved Administration 

58 
Manage Monthly 
Access tag register 

- 
New 

Indicator 
12 monthly 

reports 
12 

0 monthly 
reports 

Achieved Administration 

Provide effective and 
efficient Transport 
Services 

59 
Review and 
implement fleet 
management policy 

- 
New 

indicator 

Review 
completed in 1st 

quarter, 
management 

100% according 
to plan for rest 

of year 

58% 
42% to 

completion 
Not Achieved Administration 

60 

Manage fleet data 
and ensure license 
renewals are up to 
date 

- 
New 

Indicator 
12 monthly 

reports 
12  

0 monthly 
reports 

Achieved Administration 

3.2 Programme 2 

 
         

ARTISTICS 
         

Strategic Oriented Goal 1: To identify, develop and promote new art expressions to progressively advance the cultural well-being of all South Africans through 
developing, educating, promoting and presenting Arts in a functional Theatre environment 

  

Strategic Objective No 
Key Performance 

Indicators 
Audited Baseline Annual Target 

Annual 
Achieved 

Target 

Variance 
(Actual vs 

Target) 

Variance 
Explanation 

Responsible 
Unit 

To create platforms for 
artistic expression in 
music, dance, theatre, 
poetry, opera  and 
comedy 

1 
Number of music 
concerts 

0 2 6 5 -1 Achieved 
Artistic 
Department 

2 
Number of dance 
productions 

0 3 2 4 2 Achieved 
Artistic 
Department 

3 
Number of drama 
productions 

0 8 8 9 1 Achieved 
Artistic 
Department 
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4 
Number of poetry 
productions  

0 0 2 2 0 Achieved 
Artistic 
Department 

5 
Number of opera 
productions 

0 1 1 0 -1 Not Achieved 
Artistic 
Department 

6 
Number of comedy 
productions 

0 0 1 0 -1 
Producer 
cancelled 

Artistic 
Department 

To create platforms for 
local artists to perform 
and become known 

7 

Number of 
productions for 
local theatre 
practitioners 
(included above) 

0 
New 

Indicator 
10 7 -3 

Not enough local 
production as 

anticipated 

Artistic 
Department 

8 
Number of tours to 
provide exposure 
to local artists 

0 
New 

Indicator 
3 2 -1 

Budget 
constraints 

Artistic 
Department 

9 
Number of 
partnerships with 
practitioners 

0 
New 

Indicator 
10 40 30 Achieved 

Artistic 
Department 

10 
Number of 
international tours 
for local artists 

0 3 1 1 0 Achieved 
Artistic 
Department 

11 

Number of festivals 
arranged to provide 
exposure to local 
artists 

0 3 3 0 -3 
Budget 

constraints 
Artistic 
Department 

To offer the theatre 
complex as a vibrate 
facility for events 

12 

Number of adverts 
to promote 
catering or venue 
services to 
potential clients 

0 
New 

indicator 
4 0 -4 

Tsoho production 
was not held due 

lack of funding  

Artistic 
Department 

13 

Number of external 
bookings to use 
theatre as a venue 
(clients)[1]  

0 68 75 27 -48 

Lack of 
advertising for 
venue rental 

space 

Artistic 
Department 

14 
Number of 
revenue-generating 
catering functions  

0 17 20 7 -13 
Less catering 
offered from 

internal 

Artistic 
Department 

To Promote PACOFS and 
Its internal and external 
Productions to the public 
through effective 
marketing and 
communications 
campaigns 

15 

% development and 
delivery of a 
marketing plan for 
PACOFS 

0 100% 100% 0% -100% Not Achieved 
Artistic 
Department 

16 

Number of media 
events (print, radio 
and TV) to 
popularize 
productions 

0 
12 radio and 

16 
newspaper 

24 radio; 24 
newspaper; 4 

Television 

3 radio & 2 
newspaper 

  Not Achieved 
Artistic 
Department 

../../../../../Pacofs%20-%20Yearend%202014.15/APP%202014.15/Annual%20APP%20from%20Apr%202014%20-%20Mar%202015.xlsx#RANGE!#REF!
../../../../../Pacofs%20-%20Yearend%202014.15/APP%202014.15/Annual%20APP%20from%20Apr%202014%20-%20Mar%202015.xlsx#RANGE!#REF!
../../../../../Pacofs%20-%20Yearend%202014.15/APP%202014.15/Annual%20APP%20from%20Apr%202014%20-%20Mar%202015.xlsx#RANGE!#REF!
../../../../../Pacofs%20-%20Yearend%202014.15/APP%202014.15/Annual%20APP%20from%20Apr%202014%20-%20Mar%202015.xlsx#RANGE!#REF!
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17 
Number of business 
partnership 
sponsors 

0 
New 

Indicator 
10 0 -10 Not Achieved 

Artistic 
Department 

18 

Number of printed 
media for 
advertising of 
PACOFs events 
(while media 
strategy depends 
very much on the 
LSM and 
demographic 
targeted)  

0 
New 

Indicator 

150 posters, 5 
billboards and 6 

banners per 
production 

2250 posters; 
43 billboards; 

6 banners 

2100 posters 
and 38 

billboards 
printed 

Achieved 
Artistic 
Department 

19 
Number of online 
newsletters 

0 
New 

Indicator 
12 1 -11 Not Achieved 

Artistic 
Department 

20 

% development and 
delivery of a brand 
management 
strategy  for 
PACOFS 

0 100% 100% 0% -100% Not Achieved 
Artistic 
Department 

Strategic Oriented Goal 3: To identify, develop and implement strategies to contribute to the New Growth Path   

Strategic Objective No 
Key Performance 

Indicators 
Audited Baseline Annual Target 

Annual 
Achieved 

Target 

Variance 
(Actual vs 

Target) 

Variance 
Explanation 

Responsible 
Unit 

Ensure that PACOFS uses 
arts and culture as a 
medium to stimulate job 
creation and growth 

28 

Number of jobs 
created  
(permanent and 
contract) per 
production 

- 200 500 497 -3 Achieved 
Artistic 
Department 

Strategic Oriented Goal 4: Creating an environment where the arts could gain exposure to existing genres, being creative in developing new creative ideas and promoting 
a holistic experience to the sector 

  

Strategic Objective No 
Key Performance 

Indicators 
Audited Baseline Annual Target 

Annual 
Achieved 

Target 

Variance 
(Actual vs 

Target) 

Variance 
Explanation 

Responsible 
Unit 

To develop Artistic 
drama concepts that will 
grow and sustain a 
vibrant creative arts 
environment 

31 
Number of new 
scripts written 

40 
New 

indicator 
40 5 -35 Not Achieved 

Artistic 
Department 

32 
Number of scripts 
given a staged 
reading. 

20 
New 

indicator 
20 0 -20 Not Achieved 

Artistic 
Department 
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33 
Number of scripts 
given a showcase in 
the theatre. 

8 
New 

indicator 
8 0 -8 Not Achieved   

Implement that vision of 
the Mzansi Golden 
Economy through giving 
expression to its 
programmes to create an 
enabling and vibrant 
creative arts 
environment 

33 

To provide our 
recording studio 
facilities for the 
practical training of 
sound technicians 
enrolled with 
institutions of 
higher learning As 
per institutional 
enrolment   : yearly 
per curriculum 

5 
New 

Indicator 
10 0 

Touring 
Company 

events 
established at 

PACOFS cultural 
precinct 

Not Achieved 
Artistic 
Department 

34 

To provide our 
recording studio 
facilities to semi-
professional artists 
and groups for the 
recording of their 
music for marketing 
and distribution 
purposes with 20 
recordings 

- 
New 

Indicator 
Approved Plan - 

10 Public Arts 
Programme 

Activities 
Not Achieved 

Artistic 
Department 

Strategic Oriented Goal 5: To identify information that should be retained and implement the national guidelines on the digitization of heritage resources   

Strategic Objective No 
Key Performance 

Indicators 
Audited Baseline Annual Target 

Annual 
Achieved 

Target 

Variance 
(Actual vs 

Target) 

Variance 
Explanation 

Responsible 
Unit 

To ensure that PACOFS 
complies and excels with 
the Heritage 
requirements on 
digitization and retaining 
of information on 
resources  

35 

Development of a 
business plan to 
digitize heritage 
resources 

- 
New 

Indicator 
Approved  

Business Plan 
- 

Not developed 
and   

implementation 
of business plan 

Not Achieved 
Office of the 
CEO 

Consider how 
information can be used 
through the theatre and 
future precincts of 
PACOFS to use 
information as a tool for 
nation building and 
creating excitement 
around the dramatic arts 

36 

Development of a 
Concept Document 
on the creation of 
an information 
precinct within the 
cultural precinct 

- 
New 

Indicator 
Approved 
Concept 

- 

Information 
precinct 

developed as 
initial part of 

cultural 
precinct. 

Not Achieved 
Office of the 
CEO 

Strategic Oriented Goal 6: To provide and maintain high quality support services to the Council and department pertaining to sound financial management, human 
resource management, information technology, cleaning, transport and security administration 
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Strategic Objective No 
Key Performance 

Indicators 
Audited Baseline Annual Target 

Annual 
Achieved 

Target 

Variance 
(Actual vs 

Target) 

Variance 
Explanation 

Responsible 
Unit 

Ensure all support for 
stage set up and services 
is adhered to 

54 
Number of set ups 
for Artistic 
Productions 

- 37 40 10 -30 Not Achieved 
Artistic 

Department 

55 
Number of set ups 
for External 
Productions 

- 20 20 2 -18 Not Achieved 
Artistic 

Department 

3.3 Programme 3 

STAGE AND TECHNICAL 
         

Strategic Oriented Goal 2: To identify, develop and train specific target groups that can be deployed to improve the overall skill levels and increase the interest of people 
in the arts, resulting in an increased audience 

  

Strategic Objective No 
Key Performance 

Indicators 
Audited Baseline Annual Target 

Annual 
Achieved 

Target 

Variance 
(Actual vs 

Target) 

Variance 
Explanation 

Responsible 
Unit 

To promote, educate and 
develop Audience & 
young artists by 
educating audience & 
young artists in way of 
presentation outside and 
inside PACOFS 

21 

To partner with FET 
institutions in the 
Free State 
providing practical 
environment for 
internships for 
students in 3

rd
 year 

of study or 
applicable year that 
requires practical 
sessions as per the 
curriculum. (Youth 
in school) 

- 
New 

Indicator 

25 Internships 1 Internship -24 Internships Not Achieved 
Artistic 
Department 

[10 – 
Technology 

        

5 HR         

5 Marketing         

5 Others 
(Finance, ICT, 

etc.)] 
        

To develop a love and 
interest for, and sound 
understanding of Arts 
and Culture in schools 

22 

To design arts 
programmes for 
youth in school and 
facilitate all logistic 
AND staging 
requirements of 
these.(given the 
school planning 
calendar this will 

- 
New 

Indicator 

3 unique arts 
festivals 

2 x music & 1 
X drama 

- Achieved 
Artistic 
Department 

         1x music        
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align with the 
timing of exams) 

         1x drama        

         1x dance        

         1x 
competition

       

23 

To design and 
implement arts 
programmes for 
community arts 
initiatives in FS 
municipalities and 
facilitate all logistic 
and staging 
requirements of 
these. 

- 
New 

Indicator 

3x community 
groups to be 
linked to a 

festival 

7x group  

4x community 
groups to be 
linked to a 

festival 

Achieved 
Artistic 
Department 

24 

To provide 
mentorship 
opportunities for 
local artists with 
professionals 
(directors, 
choreographers, 
music directors) 
who are engaged 
by PACOFS in 
staging 
performances in 
our theatres (age 
group being over 
25) (youth out of 
school) (ideally they 
would have 
directed a few 
plays) 

- 5 20x local artists 11 -9x local artists Not Achieved 
Artistic 
Department 

To develop a love and 
interest for, and sound 
understanding of Arts 

and Culture within rural 
communities 

25 

(Master class' with 
professional 
mentors) To 
workshop, mentor 
and train 
community art 
groups. 

- 
New 

Indicator 

12x community 
art groups 

4xdance & 
5xmusic & 
1xpoetry & 

5xdrama 

Exceed by 3 
community art 

groups 
Achieved 

Artistic 
Department 

         4x dance 
groups

4xdance       

         4x music 
groups

5xmusic       

         4x poetry 1xpoetry       

         4x drama 5xdrama       
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Link performance with budget 

Programme 1: Administration 

      
  2014/2015 2013/2014 

Sub-
Programme/activity/objective 

Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Central 2 978  2 445  532  2 382  1 562  820  

Office of the CFO 1 479  190  1 288  1 294  968  326  

Financial Management 14 749  11 307  3 442  13 328  13 436  -108  

Corporate and Support 
Services 

8 798  9 079  -281  9 468  6 951  2 517  

Supply Chain Management  2 437  2 379  58  2 376  1 938  438  

              

Total 30 440  25 400  5 040  28 848  24 855  3 993  

       

       Programme 2: Artistic Services 

      
  2014/2015 2013/2014 

Sub-
Programme/activity/objective 

Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Central 2 978  2 445  532  2 382  1 562  820  

  R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Front and back of House Theatre 
Management 

3 410  2 992  418  3 060  4 180  -1 120  

Artistic and Production 6 294  5 501  793  7 193  6 842  351  

Audience and Artistic 
Development and Training 

1 578  908  670  1 702  2 024  -322  

Marketing and Production 1 691  1 294  397  2 207  1 786  421  

              

Total 12 973  10 694  2 279  14 162  14 832  -670  
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       Programme 3: Technical Services 

      
  2014/2015 2013/2014 

Sub-
Programme/activity/objective 

Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Central 2 978  2 445  532  2 382  1 562  820  

  R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Electro Mechanical / Technical 
and Maintenance 

4 151  3 225  926  4 163  3 460  703  

Production / Stage Services 4 396  4 156  240  4 636  3 628  1 008  

Stage and Technical Services 797  755  42  757  728  29  

              

Total 9 344  8 137  1 207  9 556  7 816  1 740  

       

       
Consolidated 

      
  2014/2015 2013/2014 

Sub-
Programme/activity/objective 

Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

Budget 
Actual 

Expenditure 
(Over)/Under 
Expenditure 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Central 2 978  2 445  532  2 382  1 562  820  

  R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Core Funding 37 690  38 825  1 135  35 487  37 471  1 984  

Government grant - subsidy 0  0  0  0  0  0  

Revenue from exchange 
transactions 

    0      0  

Sale of goods 220  646  425  3 648  1 174  -2 474  

Rendering of services 711  670  -40  4 495  869  -3 626  

Other income 12 847  1 319  -11 528  7 142  1 293  -5 849  

Interest received - investment 1 287  337  -950  1 800  870  -930  

Total Revenue 52 756  41 798  -10 958  52 573  41 678  -10 895  

              

Central 2 978  2 445  532  2 382  1 562  820  

Office of the CFO 1 479  190  1 288  1 294  968  326  

Financial Management 14 749  11 307  3 442  13 335  13 436  -101  
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Corporate and Support 
Services 

8 798  9 079  -281  9 468  7 220  2 248  

Supply Chain Management  2 437  2 379  58  2 376  1 938  438  

Front and back of House Theatre 
Management 

3 410  2 992  418  3 060  4 180  -1 120  

Artistic and Production 6 294  5 501  793  7 193  6 842  351  

Audience and Artistic 
Development and Training 

1 578  908  670  1 702  2 024  -322  

Marketing and Production 1 691  1 294  397  2 207  1 786  421  

Electro Mechanical / Technical 
and Maintenance 

4 151  3 225  926  4 163  3 460  703  

Production / Stage Services 4 396  4 156  240  4 636  3 628  1 008  

Stage and Technical Services 797  755  42  757  728  29  

Total Expenditure 52 756  44 231  8 526  52 573  47 772  4 801  

              

Net Surplus / (Deficit) 0  -2 433  -2 433  -0  -6 094  -6 094  

 

3.1.5 Strategy to overcome areas of under performance 

The strengthening effective and efficient function of support departments will ensure that PACOFS realised strategic objectives.  

Dedication of each line manager to his/her department deliverance will be vehicle to overcome under performance of 

programme.   

Some of the plans to achieve the underperformances are; 

 The sustainable of organisation finances by means identifying new revenue streams and costs managed.  

 Comprehensive financially sustainable model. 

 Capacitating key departments with key skills 

 Attentive management i.e. management that understands the needs and requirements, proactively manage risks and 
ensure productivity of staff.  

 Building good working relationship between management and employees 

 A performance management system 

 PACOFS must leverage its current relationships with other institutions. 

 PACOFS must be run as a business, which means efficiently, effectively, commercially and sustainably. 
 

3.2.4 Commentary on the performance for Business Development / Artistic (programmes 2) has 
contributed to the achievement of the public entity’s strategic outcomes orientated goals 

HIGHLIGHTS 
 
National and International Platforms: 
 

 Moeder Moed. 

o Moeder Moed initially had a challenge as the lead actor Aletta lost her husband.  As such we could not 
premier in KKNK but at PACOFS.  This however worked in our favour as the production ran to Critical acclaim 
and ticket sales at KKNK.  It got 6 Kanna nominations and got 3.  The production is now destined for 
Potchefstroom and Woord-fees in February 2016. 

o This measure of success emanating from co-productions is what will characterise our productions going 
forward.  This method of producing helps us to be in on major productions that perform on our stages and 
carries the banner of PACOFS nationally and internationally. 

 
 A Distant Drum 

o This production came to us via Mannie Manim.  It was written by the novelist Christopher Hope and featured 
his son Daniel Hope.  If we had not premiered this production we could never have been able to afford it.  We 
finally performed this production at Carnegie Hall in New York.  This was a prestigious engagement whose 
success we cannot down-play.  It was featured in the New York Times. 

 
 First Stages 
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o This was the inaugural season of this project.  It featured 5 local productions that were identified through 
showcases and staged readings.  A mentor-director was engaged (Itumeleng Motsikoe) and we gave all the 
productions all the technical, creative and marketing support that we could.  The success of this season can 
be seen through the after-life of these productions – performing at Wushwini and Vryfestival.  Getting funding 
from the NAC and performing at Mmabana in the Northwest province. 

o We hope that this programme will be a permanent feature in our APP for the period immediately after 
MACUFE each year.  The DAC introduction and financing of the INCUBATER programme is a major boost to 
this initiative. 

 
 OFFSIDE (Showcase) 

o Our professional relationship with Thambo Production Management gave birth to 2 productions – Offside and 
Masote’s Dream.  In the fourth quarter of this financial year we staged a showcase of OFFSIDE which was 
filmed and taken to Netherlands for marketing to theatres there.  The latest news is that the production will be 
touring Netherlands for the period September till December 2017.  Co-production has worked for us again.  
The element of planning in advance is also highlighted by this venture. 

 
 The Triumph 

o We staged this production in collaboration with Moving Into Dance.  MID team worked with local dancers in 
advance and then the choreographers came in to ‘polish’ the show and move it into the theatre.  We 
presented our local talent in a manner we could not have if they were by themselves.  The dancers from 
Welkom went on to do their own dance projects after this production. 

3.3.2 Commentary on the performance for Business Engagement / Technical  Services (programmes 3) 
has contributed to the achievement of the public entity’s strategic outcomes orientated goals 

This support service was able to meet the challenges and opportunities offered by the Artistic programme in our 
theatres and external venues.  The biggest challenge is in the shortage of staff, this leads to excessive long hours for 
some personnel like the Lighting Technician, Sound Technician and Stage Mechanist.   
 

4. REVENUE COLLECTION 

Revenue under collection in the following areas: Sales of goods; Rendering of services; and other income is due to low 

demand of sales of goods, short period of show interval; lack of Theatre services rendering to public and non-collection on 

other components of other income.   

With reference to low income on interest is attributable to reduction of investment balance which interest earn is derived from. 

Management have taken a decision to revise these revenue streams budget and forecast on realistic expected income to 

achieve and also introduction of new revenue streams which are more viable and measurable. 

Revenue Collection 

  2014/2015 2013/2014 

Sources of revenue Estimate  
Actual Amount 

Collected  
(Over)/Under 

Collection 
Estimate  

Actual  Amount 
Collected 

(Over)/Under 
Collection 

  R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

              

Sale of goods 220  646  425  3 648  1 175  -2 474  

Rendering of services 711  670  -40  4 495  869  -3 626  

Other income 12 735  1 319  -11 416  7 142  1 293  -5 849  

Interest received - 
investment 

1 287  337  -950  1 800  870  -930  

Subsidy DAC 37 690  38 825  1 135  35 487  37 471  1 984  

Profit of Sale of Assets 0  0  0  0  11  11  

              

Total 52 644  41 798  -10 846  52 573  41 689  -10 884  
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4.1. Capital investment  

4.1.1 Capital Projects 

4.1.1 Capital Projects 

      

Project Name 
Physical 

Progress Status 
% 

Total project 
budget/ 

Allocation 
Actual Spend  

Unspend 
Allocation 

Anticipated 
completion 

date 
Comments 

DAC Branding/ Theatre Building 70% 500 000  324 387  175 613    

Projected 
anticipated 

completion is in 
2015/16 

Maintenance and Refurbishment of 
Existing Installations  

0% 4 370 824  0  4 370 824    
On the final stage 

of specification 
compilation 

Motorized Lighting Batten (100% 
completed 

100% 500 000  383 735  116 265    

Completed. 
Awaiting 

completion 
certificate.  

PACOFS Main Entrance (10% Completed 0% 720 000  162 152  557 848    Project not started 

Revamp Andre Huguenet  100% 2 000 000  1 586 534  413 466    Completed  

Roof Upgrade (100% Completed)  100% 13 255 000  13 253 920  1 080    Completed 

Sand Carpet (100% Completed) 100% 3 200 000  2 129 752  1 070 248    

Completed. 
Awaiting 

completion 
certificate.  

Sand du Plessis - Air conditioning (60% 
Completed 

0% 13 121 179  2 866 445  10 254 734    Project not started 

Sand Plumbing (100% Completed 100% 80 000  0  80 000    Completed 

Sand Sound System (40% Completed 40% 4 000 000  2 992 978  1 007 022      

Upgrade Machinery Synchronous (100% 
Completed 

100% 12 000 000  9 522 872  2 477 128    Completed 

Upgrade Parking Area  0% 2 059 821  0  2 059 821    Project not started 

Upgrade Sand Video Monitor (100% 
Complete 

100% 316 000  199 859  116 141    Completed 

Incubator project    5 000 000  0  5 000 000    Project just started 

Total   61 122 824  33 422 634  27 700 190      
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4.1.2 Progress made on the maintenance of infrastructure 

 

 There has been no progress on infrastructure since the instruction from DAC to stop any infrastructure projects until 

further notice. 

 

4.1.3 Developments relating to the above that are expected to impact on the public entity’s current 

expenditure. 

 

 Due to such moratorium, there will be no financial impact on expenditure in current year of reporting. 
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PART C: GOVERNANCE 
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1. INTRODUCTION 

Corporate governance embodies processes and systems by which public entities are directed, controlled and held to 
account. In addition to legislative requirements based on a public entity’s enabling legislation, corporate governance 
with regard to public entities is applied through the precepts of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) and run in 
tandem with the principles contained in the King’s Report on Corporate Governance. 

 

Parliament, the Executive and the Accounting Authority of the public entity are responsible for corporate governance. 

 

2. PORTFOLIO COMMITTEES 

No meetings held 

 

3. EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY   

REPORT DESCRIPTION SUBMISSION DATES 
ISSUES RAISED BY THE 
EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY 

Procurement Plans 29 April 2014 None 

First Quarter Report 21 August 2015 None 

Second Quarter Report 30 October 2015 None 

Fourth Quarter Report 07 May 2015 None 

Annual Report 2013/15 22 September 2015 None 

Strategic Plan 2015/16 – 2019/2020 30 January 2016 None 

Annual Performance Plan 2015/16 30 January 2016 None 

User Asset Management Plan 30 January 2016 None 

 

4. THE ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY / BOARD  

The Council has ushered in a formal Code of Ethics (“Code”) which is in line with good corporate governance. The 

Council believes that the Code prescribes the minimum framework for governance of the organisation and institutionalises 

the spirit it entails. The Council recognises that transparency, disclosure, financial controls and accountability remain the 

pillars of a good system of corporate governance. 

4.1 Council Members  

In terms of Cultural Institution, section 3 of the Cultural Institutions Act, 1998, the composition of the Council shall not 

be less than five non-executive Council members, and five other members representing different government 

departments. 

4.2 Constitution of the Council 
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PACOFS is a public entity within the meaning of section 1 of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) No. 1 of 1999. 

Members are governed by the Code and terms of reference, which have been enhanced to ensure that the entity operates 

efficiently and effectively. It is also a Cultural Institution in terms of section 3 of the Cultural Institutions Act, 1998. The 

legislation governing the entities operations are chapter 6 of the PFMA, part 9, 16 and 16A of the Treasury Regulations. 

4.3 Composition of the Council 

As at 31 March 2015, the Council comprised of seven members. The chairperson of the Council resigned on 23 March 

2015 and his responsibilities were delegated to Deputy Chairperson. The Council members bring to the Council a wide 

range of experience and skills. The composition of the Council also meets the requirements of the Code.  

4.4 Responsibilities 

The primary role of the Council is that of being an accounting authority and trusteeship to protect and enhance service delivery 

as espoused in the strategic and business plan. The Council ensures that the entity has clear goals and policies. The Council 

oversees the entity’s strategic direction and reviews its performance, authorises and monitors implementation of strategic 

decisions, ensures legislative compliance and safeguards the entity’s resources. The Council ensures that the entity is 

managed in a manner that fulfils stakeholders’ aspirations and expectations. The Council members also ensure that as 

independent members, their other responsibilities do not impinge on their responsibilities as Council members of the PACOFS.  

 

The Council has a responsibility to: 

 

 Formulate the strategic policies of the PACOFS in furtherance of its objects and public purposes, and in consultation with 

the Minister; 

 Approve, monitor the priorities and programmes and the plans and budget of the PACOFS; 

 Approve the financial statements of the PACOFS; 

 Ensure that the PACOFS applies and manages its financial, human, and other resources with economy, efficiency, 

effectiveness and transparency; 

 Appoint a suitably qualified person to serve as Chief Executive Officer; and 

 Delegate powers to any of its committees, or to the Chief Executive Officer of the PACOFS. 

1.4 Compliance 

The Council ensures adherence to applicable legislation, provisions of the law, rules and regulations, National Treasury 

prescribed guidelines, etc. It further ensures compliance to all applicable provisions of the relevant Acts and statutory 

requirements whenever necessary. With the release of King III on governance on 1 September 2009, the Council strives 

to embrace its principles by implementing and applying them in all spheres. The Council engages the recommendations 

of the King Report on Governance 2009 by applying the general practices of corporate governance as espoused therein 

and ensuring conformity and compliance thereto. 

 
 
PACFOS BOARD 
COMPOSITION 
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Name 

Designation 
(in   terms of 

the Public 
Entity Board 

Structure) 

Date 
Appointed 

Date 
Resigned 

Qualifications 
Area of 

Expertise 
Board Directorship 
(List the Entities) 

Other 
Committees 
(e.g.: Audit 
Committee) 

No. of 
Meetings 
Attended 

1. Pro S. 
Mahlomaholo 

Chairperson 
01 December 
2014 

23 March 
2015 

        1  

2. Mrs O. R 
Mochware 

Deputy 
Chairperson 

01 December 
2014 

  
BA - Bachalor of Arts &  
High Education 
Diploma 

Governance n/a None 1  

3. Mr T Segopolo 
Council 
Member 

01 December 
2014 

          1  

4. Mr. Z Mkiva 
Council 
Member 

01 December 
2014           

1  

5. Mr. CJT Wing 
Council 
Member 

01 December 
2014           

1  

6. Mrs. MAD 
Mnumzana 

Council 
Member 

01 December 
2014           

1  

7. Mrs. SFS 
Makhathini 

Council 
Member 

01 December 
2014           

1  

8. Mr. B Mathibela 
Council 
Member 

01 December 
2014           

1  

  
    

          
  

1.   Mr. Rudy 
Rashama 

Chairperson 
01 August 
2011 

30 
September 
2014 

#  Diploma in Cost and    
Management 
Accounting- Wits 
Technikon.  

  

#  Director and 
Shareholder African 
Union 
Communications                                                                  
#  Director of Ilangabi 
Investment 

None 4  

2.   Adv. Jerome 
Mthembu 

Council 
Member 

01 August 
2011 

30 
September 
2014 

#  B. Proc - University 
of Zulu Land ·  
Advanced Diploma in 
Labour Law RAU. 

Law 
#   Chairperson of 
Disciplinary Committee 
SAFA (Free State). 

None 4  

3.   Ms. Marlene 
Thomasse-
Pieterse 

Council 
Member 

01 August 
2011 

30 
September 
2014 

None Arts 

#    She is an arts 
teacher who runs her 
own institution called 
Stage world and she is 
also a theatre                                                                                                                             
# Director, performer 
and a member of the 
Port Elizabeth Opera 
House. 

None 2  

4.   Mr. Monyane 
Sefantsi 

Council 
Member 

01 August 
2011 

30 
September 
2014 

#  Master’s degree in 
Tourism Development 
and Management  

Marketing   None 3  

5.   Ms. Sheila 
Mazibuko 

Council 
Member 

01 August 
2011 

30 
September 
2014 

# Degree in Dramatic 
Arts from Wits 
University                                                                                                   
#  Currently studying 
towards an honours 
degree in 
Communications. 

Marketing   None 1  

6.   Mr. Bernardus 
Rossouw 
Swanepoel 

Council 
Member 

01 August 
2011 

28 January 
2014 

# BA Honours in 
History . BA in Music 

Arts   None 2  

7.   Mr. Walter 
Chakela 

Council 
Member 

01 January 
2013 

30 
September 
2014 

#   BA Honours in 
English Literature. 

Arts   None 2  

8.   Mr. Thami-ka 
Plaatjie 

Council 
Member 

01 January 
2013 

30 
September 
2014 

#  BA Degree                                                                                                                                                                
#  Honours degree                                                                                                                                                   
#  University Education 
Diploma from Vista                                                                                                        
#   Masters: Thesis 
topic Ideological 
Conflict in the ANC 
Youth League 1994-
1955. 

    None 2  

9.   Mr. Thabo 
Mongake 

Council 
Member 

01 January 
2013 

30 
September 
2014 

#   Diploma in 
Auctioneering from 
South African College 
of Auctioneering.                                                                                                                  
#  Completing LLB with 
University of the State. 

Law   None 3  

10. Mr. Mmoledi 
Petrus Moloi 

Council 
Member 

01 January 
2013 

30 
September 
2014 

#  National: Public 
Administration                                                                                                                           
#  Certificate in Project 
Management 

    None 3  
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Remuneration of board members 

 

 The remuneration rates for PACOFS council members are determined by the National Treasury. 

 Other allowances comprise only of the UIF contributions. 

 

The tabled below discloses the total remuneration paid to council members: 

Name Remuneration  
Other 

allowance 
Other re-

imbursements 
Total 

  ( R ) ( R ) ( R ) ( R ) 

R. Rashama 11 304 113 0 11 417 

Adv. J.B Mthembu 16 384 164 0 16 548 

M.M Sefantsi 1 024 10 0 1 034 

M. Thomasse-Pieterse 1 024 10 0 1 034 

W. Chakele 2 048 20 0 2 068 

T. Plaaitjie 3 660 35 0 3 695 

T. Mongake 6 084 61 0 6 145 

M.P. Moloi 2 048 20 0 2 068 

S. Mazibuko 0 0 0 0 

Total R 43 576 R 433 R 0 R 44 009 

      
 

    

Name Remuneration  
Other 

allowance 
Other re-

imbursements 
Total 

  ( R ) ( R ) ( R ) ( R ) 

Mrs. M.A.D. Mnumzana 1 136 11 0 1 147 

Mrs. S.F.S Makhathini 2 160 22 0 2 182 

Mr. B. Mathibela 2 048 20 0 2 068 

Ms. S.G. Mazibuko 2 160 22 0 2 182 

W. Chakele 2 048 20 0 2 068 

T. Plaaitjie 1 024 10 0 1 034 

T. Mongake 2 048 61 0 2 109 

M.P. Moloi 2 048 20 0 2 068 

Total R 14 672 R 186 R 0 R 14 858 
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5. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

In terms of Public Finance Management Act public sector organizations are required to maintain an effective, efficient and 

transparent system of financial and risk management and internal control. The management of the organization must before the 

beginning of the financial year facilitate risk assessment to determine the material risks to which the institution may be exposed 

and evaluate the strategy for managing these risks. 

 

Therefore in its policy statement PACOFS recognises that risks are present in all its business activities and that successful 

management of such risks is a critical factor in maximising business value. As such, PACOFS will continuously develop, 

implement and sustain an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) program to identify, evaluate, mitigate and report on and monitor 

key risks in a manner that will strengthen management practices and support corporate governance needs. 

 

 

5.1 BENEFITS OF UPDATED RISKS REGISTER 

 

The risk register which in practical terms contains risk identified within the workplace environment, once compiled and confirmed 

should: 

1.1 Provide an effective check that the activities of the organization help it meet objectives, which means that: 

 Measurable outcomes are achieved by ensuring that every objective links directly to the activities; and  

 A strategic plan is grounded in the real world of the business’s day-to-day activities. 

 

1.2 Improve the quality of strategic planning by ensuring that :  

 the planned objectives entirely respond to the organization’s mandate; and 

 the planned objectives are sensible and achievable; 

 

1.3 Facilitate the design of an effective internal environment control systems such as: 

 organisational structure; 

 organizational mandate and delegated authorities; 

 strategic decision-making and review processes; 

 policies and procedures and their implementation and review; 

 human-resources policies; 

 financial planning, budgeting and reporting 

 

 performance monitoring system; and 

 

 Information technology issues. 

 

 

5.2 KEY SUCCESS FACTORS FOR RISK ASSESSMENT PROCESS 

 

The approach followed in risk identification and compilation of the risk register for 2014/15 financial year incorporated the 

following elements: 

 Executive management was involved to drive the process. 

 We involved all key stakeholders in the organisation. 

 The process was firmly rooted in the actual activities of the business. 

 The approach was logical and consistently applied across the entire business and nothing was taken for granted. 

 

5.3 BASIS OF ASSURANCE 

 

We have planned and performed the risk assessment work to obtain reasonable as far as practicable risks that the organization 
maybe currently facing however the review was not been designed to assess the effectiveness of existing controls implemented 
by management to mitigate these risks rather than absolute assurance that the systems were operating as described.  
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We made reference to the previous risk assessment results as well as the Auditor General’s audit outcomes in order to ensure 
the comprehensiveness and integrity of this risk assessment process, although the process was not meant to provide specific 
assurances regarding the completeness of risks and the adequacy and effectiveness of current control procedures.  
 
 
 

5.4 RISK ASSESSMENT PROCESS 
 

(a) Key Activities Executed 
 

While the steps are shown separately within this process, it should be noted that the actual risk assessment process followed 

may have not entirely followed the sequence as some processes overlap or fall in a different order but was undertaken 

exchangeably to cover all areas and draw critical inputs.  

 

STEPS ACTIVITIES ROLE PLAYERS 

1. Approaching Risks 
Assessment 
 

 Conduct workshop to provide guidance on the application 
of Risk Assessment procedures 

  

Executive Team 

2. Identifying and 
Assessing Risks 
 

 Distributes Risks assessment questionnaire, register 
template and guidelines to departments 
 

 Schedule and conduct sessions at a Departmental level to 
assist in identifying risks 

 

 Analyse identified risks and calculate ratings  
 

HOD & Managers 

3. Consolidating 
Identified Risks 

 Collects risk register templates from departments and 
consolidates into one document 
 

Internal Audit  

4. Confirming Identified 
Risks and rating 

 Conduct workshop to confirm identified risks, rating, 
mitigating controls and ownership 
 

Executive Team & Managers 

5. Producing Final Risk 
Register 

 Compile final risk register   
 

 Present to management and board 

Internal Audit 

 

 

(b) Risks Identification 

Risk assessment workshops as well as brainstorming sessions were held with different departments and business units. During 
the workshops participants were provided with the guidelines to conduct the process and brainstorming session were scheduled 
with different business units.  

 

6. INTERNAL CONTROL UNIT 

The internal audit did not perform any internal audit work during the year under review. 

 

7. INTERNAL AUDIT AND AUDIT COMMITTEES 

The internal audit did not perform any internal audit work during the year under review, which resulted to the internal 
audit not being able to submit the internal audit reports to the audit committee. 
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The tabled below discloses relevant information on the audit committee members: 

AUDIT COMMITTEE COMPOSITION 
     

Name Qualifications 
Internal or 
external 

If 
internal, 
position 

in the 
public 
entity 

Date 
appointed 

Term ending 
date 

No. of Meetings 
attended 

 Ms SCE  Douglas  
(Chairperson) 

Certificates: 1.  Dealing 

with Fraud;  2. Supply 
Chain Management I;  3.  
Pastel Bookkeeping; 4. 
Real Management; 5. 
Performance 
Management 

External N/a 01-Jul-14 30-Jun-17 1 

Mr LS Moduane 
Bcom: Bachelor Degree 

in Commerce II 
External N/a 01-Jul-14 30-Jun-17 1 

Mr KA Nkoe 

Bcom: Bachelor Degree 

in Commerce II  
Certificates: 1. Public 

Sector Risk Management;  
Membership : 1. The 

Institute of Internal 
Auditors South Africa; 2. 
South Africa Institute of 
Chartered Accountans 

External N/a 01-Jul-14 30-Jun-17 1 

Ms MS Tlali 

Deploma: Cost and 

Management Accounting; 
Certificates: 1. 

Management 
Development for 
Municipal Finance 

External N/a 01-Jul-14 30-Jun-17 1 
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Attendance of audit committee meetings by audit committee members (Tabular form); 

Members   Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 

  Dates         

 Ms SCE  Douglas  
(Chairperson)    



Mr LS Moduane 
   



Mr KA Nkoe 
   



Ms MS Tlali 
   



 

 Member attended the Audit Committee meeting. 

  Member did not attend the Audit Committee meeting. 

 

8. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

PACOFS had complied with all the relevant Laws and Regulations, except as highlighted in the audit report. 

 

9. FRAUD AND CORRUPTION   

 It is the policy of the PACOFS that fraud, corruption, maladministration or any other dishonest activities of a similar nature 

will not be tolerated.  Such activities will be investigated and actions instituted against those found responsible.  Such 

actions may include the laying of criminal charges, civil and administrative actions and PACOFS of recoveries where 

applicable. 

 

 Prevention, detection, response and investigative strategies will be designed and implemented.  These will include any 

existing controls (system controls and manual internal controls) and those currently prescribed in existing policies, 

procedures and other relevant prescripts to the activities of PACOFS. 

 

 It is the responsibility of all employees to report all incidents of fraud and corruption that may come to his / her attention to 

his / her supervisor.  Alternatively, such reports can be made by way of submitting a report through the prescribed whistle 

blowing mechanism.  

 

 All reports received will be treated with the requisite confidentiality and will not be disclosed or discussed with parties other 

than those charged with investigation into such reports.  

 

 All Managers are responsible for the detection, prevention and investigation of fraud and corruption, within their areas of 

responsibility. 

 

 Additionally the PACOFS is also using the Free State Province: Fraud and Corruption reporting processes (Hotline: 0800 

21 21 78) and DAC anti-fraud and corruption hotline (Whistle blower toll-free: 0800 701 701). 
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10. MINIMISING CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 Bid Committee members must all sign a declaration of interest form which forms part of the Evaluation and Adjudication 

minutes.  For bids over R500 000, each Bid-Evaluation panel member signs a declaration of interest form for every 

service provider evaluated for functionality. 

 If any Bid-Committee member does have interest in a service provider, he/she must declare it and recuse him-/her from 

the evaluation / adjudication process.  This is recorded in the documentation. 

 

 SCM staff members all complete financial disclosure forms. 

 

11. HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES 

 The Institution has improved in complying with the abovementioned regulation. Monthly audit is done by external 

service provider and we are addressing the issues raised. 

 As PACOFS we are striving to zero harm at workplace. 

 No serious injuries reported in the financial year.  

 

12. SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 

As part of Mandela day initiative for the year 2014 -2015 PACOFS together with other stakeholders we assisted “Cee-

jay Teleka educare” in phase 6 with the following  

Arranging and aerobic Marathon ‘’Sweat your heart out for TATA” where tickets were sold for R67.00. for 67 minutes.  

The money raised through this initiative together with other donations we used to buy the following for the Day Care: 

 

 Matrasses for all the kids 

 Stationary 

 Food 

 Office furniture 

 Computer and printer 

 Table and chairs  

 Lunch boxes 

 Blankets  

 Stove 

 The building was revamped  ( with new roof, painted .ceiling storage shelves for kids, carpets) 

 
 

 

 

 



Page | 46 
 
 

 

 

 

PART D: HUMAN RESOURCE 
MANAGEMENT 
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1. INTRODUCTION  

1.1. Overview of PACOFS Human Resources 

 

 PACOFS is in the process of transforming organizational diversity & culture within the institution refer to the 

APP 2014/15. 

 An Human Resources Management strategic plan is currently been developed to assist with the systematic 

approach to developing and implementing long term HRM strategies, policies and plans to enable the 

organization to achieve its objectives refer to PACOFS strategic plan 2014/15 – 2018/19. 

 

 

1.2. Set HR Priorities for the year Under Review and the Impact of these Priorities 

 

 HR priorities are to finalise all essential positions with in the institution. The development and implementing of 

HR systems is intended to enhance the organisational culture and improve service delivery. 

 

 

1.3. Workforce Planning Framework and key Strategies to attract and Recruit a Skilled and Capable 

Workforce 

 

 The workforce planning strategy will assist with the systematic identification and analysis of organizational 

workforce needs culminating in a workforce plan to ensure sustainable organizational capacity in pursuit of the 

achievement of its strategic and operational objectives. The workforce plan will set out the actions necessary 

to recruit skilled people in the right positions. 

 

 

1.4. Employee Performance Management Framework 

 

 The Performance Management is a planned process of directing, developing, supporting, aligning and 

improving individual and team performance in enabling the sustained achievement of organizational 

objectives. 

 The Performance Management policy has been developed. The consultation of all stakeholders is in the 

process and the implementation will be finalized during this financial year. 

 

1.5 Employee Wellness Programme 

 Employee wellness strategy is to ensure that a safe and healthy work and social environment is created and 

maintained, together with individual wellness commitment that enables employees to perform optimally, 

meeting all health and safety legislative requirements and  relevant wellness good practices which will support 

the achievement of the institution objectives. 

 Policy and Programme are currently been developed and will be forward to all stakeholders for comments and 

the implementation  will be done during this financial year 2014/2015, at the same time short term wellness 

programmes will be implemented as a matter of urgency. 

 

 

1.6 Policy Development 

 

 Several policy developments have been completed at the same time implementation has taken place on some 

policies. Outstanding policies still have to be approved by council. 

 

 

1.7 Highlights Achievements 
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  contracts employees will be offered permanent employment contract as required by legislation BCEA 

amendment Bill. 

 

 

 

1.8 Challenges Faced by the Entity 

The challenges are: 

 Lack of organizational development system, training and development new changes needed to improve 

organizational effectiveness and efficiency by utilising diagnostic data, designing and implementing 

appropriate solutions and interventions to measurably the organization to optimise its purpose and strategy 

 

 

 

1.9 Future HR Plans/Goals 

 

 Developing policies and procedures 

 Training and development for the institution 

 Improve performance of Employees 

 Reduce Risk 

 Enhanced Reputation of the Institution 

 

 

2. HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS  

Personnel Cost by programme  

Programme Total 
Expenditure 
for the entity 

(R’000) 

Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 

Personnel 
exp. as a % of 

total  exp. 
(R’000) 

No. of 
employees 

Average 
personnel 
cost per 

employee 
(R’000) 

Administration 25 590 11 737       46% 50        234 

Artistic Services 14 834   3 850       26%  17        226 

Technical Services   7 818   6 925       89% 25        277 

TOTAL 48 242 22 512       47% 92        245 

 

Personnel cost by salary band 

Level Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 

% of personnel exp. 
to total personnel 

cost (R’000) 

No. of employees Average personnel 
cost per employee 

(R’000) 

Top Management       2 259        10.03% 3             753 

Senior Management       3 363        14.94%  8             480 

Professional qualified       2 503        11.12% 7             357 

Skilled        4 454        19.79%  19             234 

Semi-skilled       2 292         10.18% 43               53 

*Unskilled       7 641        33.94% 12              636 

TOTAL     22 512       100.00% 92              419 

 

*Unskilled personnel expenditure includes temporal and casual staff hence the average cost per employee is high.
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Performance Rewards 

 

 FOR THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW THERE WERE NO PERFORMANCE REWARDS, BUT HOWEVER THE 

INSTITUTION APPOINTED SERVICE PROVIDER TO DESIGN PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 

 

Programme Performance rewards Personnel Expenditure 
(R’000) 

% of performance 
rewards  to total 

personnel cost (R’000) 

Top Management 0 0 0 

Senior Management 0 0 0 

Professional qualified 0 0 0 

Skilled  0 0 0 

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 

Unskilled 0 0 0 

TOTAL 0 0 0 

 

Training Costs  

Programme Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 

Training 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 

Training 
Expenditure 

as a % of 
Personnel 

Cost. 

No. of 
employees 

trained 

Avg training  
cost per 

employee 

Administration 12 469 68 0.54% 5 14 

Artistic Services 4 742 0 0 0 0 

Technical Services 6 996 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL 24 207 68 0.54% 5 14 

 

Employment and vacancies 

Programme/activity/objective 2013/2014 
No. of 

Employees 

2013/2014 
Approved 

Posts 

2013/2014 
No. of 

Employees 

2013/2014 
Vacancies 

% of 
vacancies 

Administration 50 64 50 14 22% 

Artistic Services 17 21 17 4 19% 

Technical Services 25 50 25 25 50% 

TOTAL 92 135 92 43 32% 

 
 

Programme/activity/objective 2013/2014 
No. of 

Employees 

2013/2014 
Approved 

Posts 

2013/2014 
No. of 

Employees 

2013/2014 
Vacancies 

% of 
vacancies 

Top Management 3 4 3 1 25% 

Senior Management 7 9 8 1 11% 

Professional qualified 7 23 7 16 70% 

Skilled  19 24 19 5 21% 

Semi-skilled 44 45 43 2 4% 

Unskilled 12 30 12 18 60% 

TOTAL 92 135 92 43 32% 
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Employment changes 

Salary Band Employment at 
beginning of period 

Appointments  Terminations  Employment at 
end of the 

period 

Top Management 1 2 0 3 

Senior Management 7 1 0 8 

Professional qualified 7 1 1 7 

Skilled  19 2 2 19 

Semi-skilled 46 0 3 43 

Unskilled 12 0 0 12 

TOTAL 92 6 6 92 

 

Reasons for staff leaving  

Reason Number % of total no. of staff leaving 

Death 1 13% 

Resignation 4 50% 

Dismissal 0 0 

Retirement 3 37% 

Ill health 0 0 

Expiry of contract 0 0 

Other 0 0 

TOTAL 8 100% 

 

Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action 

Nature of disciplinary Action Number 

Verbal Warning 0 

Written Warning 0 

Final Written warning 1 

Dismissal 0 

TOTAL 0 

 

Equity Target and Employment Equity Status  

 
Levels 

 
MALE 

 

 African Coloured Indian White 

 Current  Target Current  Target Current  Target Current  Target 

Top Management 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Senior 
Management 

5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Professional 
qualified 

3 0 1 0 0 0 2 0 

Skilled  8 0 2 0 0 0 1 0 
 

Semi-skilled 20 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Unskilled 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
 

TOTAL 44 0 5 0 0 0 3 0 
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Levels 

 
FEMALE 

 

 AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE 

 Current  Target Current  Target Current  Target Current  Target 

Top Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Senior 
Management 

1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 

Professional 
qualified 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Skilled  3 0 2 0 0 0 1 0 
 

Semi-skilled 18 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 
 

Unskilled 7 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 
 

TOTAL 29 0 3 0 0 0 7 0 
 

 
Recruitment of people with disability was a concern for the institution, the building didn’t have the facilities, and new 
facilities have been constructed. The recruitment of people with disability will process. 
 

Levels Disabled Staff 

 Male  Female 

 Current  Target Current  Target 

Top Management 0 0 0 0 

Senior Management 0 0 0 0 

Professional qualified 0 0 0 0 

Skilled  0 0 0 0 

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0 

Unskilled 0 0 0 0 
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PART E: FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
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Report of the auditor-general to Parliament on the Performing Arts Centre of 
the Free State 

Report on the financial statements 

Introduction 

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Performing Arts Centre of the Free State set out on pages 59 to 129, which 
comprise the appropriation statement, the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015, the statement of financial 
performance, statement of changes in net assets, cash flow statement and statement of comparison of budget and actual 
amounts for the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information.  

Accounting authority’s responsibility for the financial statements 

2. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these  financial statements in 
accordance with the South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and 
the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and for such 
internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor-general’s responsibility 

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in 
accordance with the International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements, 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.  

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion. 

Opinion 

6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Performing Arts 
Centre of the Free State as at 31 March 2015 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in 
accordance with SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA. 

Emphasis of matters 

7. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

Irregular expenditure 

8. As disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, the entity incurred irregular expenditure of R7 665 604 (2014: 
R4 872 214) during the year under review mainly due to non-compliance with supply chain management requirements. In  
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9. addition, the full extent of possible irregular expenditure resulting from the use of conditional grants for purposes not 
intended, is still in the process of being investigated. 

 

Financial sustainability 

10. The statement of financial performance indicates that the entity incurred a net loss of R3 205 873 during the year ended 31 
March 2015.  This as well as the conditions stated in note 32 indicate a material uncertainty relating to events or conditions 
that may cause significant doubt on the entity’s ability to meet its financial obligations as they fall due and achievement of 
service delivery as outlined in the annual performance plan. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

11. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice issued in 
terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report findings on the reported performance information against predetermined 
objectives for selected programmes presented in the annual performance report, compliance with legislation and internal 
control. The objective of my tests was to identify reportable findings as described under each subheading but not to gather 
evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters. 

Predetermined objectives 

12. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for 
the following selected programmes presented in the annual performance report of the public entity for the year ended 
31 March 2015: 

 Programme 2: Public engagement (technical services) on pages 24 to 28 

 Programme 3: Business development (artistic services) on pages 28 to 29 

13. I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability.  

14. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was presented in accordance 
with the National Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance was consistent with the 
planned programmes. I further performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable, 
specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s Framework for managing 
programme performance information (FMPPI). 

15. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete. 

16. The material findings in respect of the selected programmes are as follows: 

Programme 2: Public engagement (technical services) 

Usefulness of reported performance information 

17. Insufficient reasons for variances between planned and actual achievements reported in the annual performance report 
were given for 100% of the targets, as required by the National Treasury’s Guide for the preparation of the annual report. 
This was due to a lack of documented and approved internal policies and procedures to address reporting requirements. 

Reliability of reported performance information 

18. The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and store performance information to 
ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual achievements against planned objectives, indicators and targets.  
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19. Significantly important targets were not reliable when compared to the source information or evidence provided. This was 
due to a lack of standard operating procedures for the accurate measurement, recording and monitoring of performance, 
monitoring of the completeness of source documentation in support of actual achievements. 

Programme 3: Business development (artistic services) 

Usefulness of reported performance information 

20. Insufficient reasons for variances between planned and actual achievements reported in the annual performance report 
were given for 100% of the targets, as required by the National Treasury’s Guide for the preparation of the annual report. 
This was due to a lack of documented and approved internal policies and procedures to address reporting requirements. 

Reliability of reported performance information 

21. The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and store performance information to 
ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual achievements against planned objectives, indicators and targets. 
Significantly important targets were not reliable when compared to the source information or evidence provided. This was 
due to a lack of standard operating procedures for the accurate measurement, recording and monitoring of performance, 
monitoring of the completeness of source documentation in support of actual achievements. 

Additional matter 

22. I draw attention to the following matter: 

Achievement of planned targets 

23. Refer to the annual performance report on page(s) 24 to 28 and 28 to 29 for information on the achievement of the 
planned targets for the year. This information should be considered in the context of the material findings on the 
usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for the selected programmes reported in paragraphs 16 
to 19 of this report. 

Compliance with legislation 

24. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the public entity had complied with applicable legislation regarding financial 
matters, financial management and other related matters. My material findings on compliance with specific matters in key 
legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA, are as follows: 

Strategic planning and performance management 

25. Procedures for quarterly reporting to the minister and the facilitation of effective performance monitoring, evaluation and 
corrective action were not established as required by treasury regulations 29.3.1 and 30.2.1. 

26. Effective, efficient and transparent systems of risk management and internal controls with respect to performance 
information and management was not in place as required by section 51(1)(a)(i) of the PFMA. 

Annual financial statements 

27. The accounting authority did not submit the financial statements for auditing within two months after the end of financial 
year, as required by section 55(1) (c) (i) of the PFMA. 

28. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting 
framework as required by section 55(1) (b) of the PFMA. Material misstatements of non-current assets, current liabilities,  
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29. expenditure and disclosure items identified by the auditors in the submitted financial statement were subsequently 
corrected, resulting in the financial statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion. 

Audit committee 

30. The audit committee did not review the effectiveness of the internal audit function, annual work programme of the internal 
audit function, coordination between the internal audit function and the external auditors, responses from management to 
specific recommendations, risk areas of the entity's operations covered in the scope of internal and external audits, 
effectiveness of the internal control systems, accounting and auditing concerns identified as a result of internal and 
external audits, as required by treasury regulation 27.1.8(a), (b), (c), (e) and (g). 

31. The audit committee did not review the adequacy, reliability and accuracy of the financial information provided to 
management and other users, as required by treasury regulation 27.1.8(d). 

32. The audit committee did not review the institution's compliance with legal and regulatory provisions, as required by 
treasury regulation 27.1.8(f). 

33. The audit committee did not meet with the Auditor-General at least annually, as required by treasury regulation 27.1.13. 

34. The audit committee did not meet at least twice a year, as required by section 77(b) of the PFMA. 

35. Sufficient appropriate audit evidence could not be obtained that the audit committee members were appointed by the 
accounting authority, as required by treasury regulation 27.1.4. 

Internal audit 

36. Internal audit was not under the control and direction of the audit committee, as required by section 51(1) (a) (ii) of the 
PFMA. 

37. Internal audit did not submit reports, detailing performance against the annual internal audit plan, to the audit committee, 
as required by treasury regulation 27.2.7(d). 

38. Internal audit did not evaluate the effectiveness and efficiency of controls and did not make recommendations for its 
enhancement and improvement, as required by treasury regulation 27.2.10. 

39. Internal audit did not evaluate the reliability and integrity of financial and operational information, as required by treasury 
regulation 27.2.10(b). 

40. Internal audit did not evaluate compliance with laws and regulations, as required by treasury regulation 27.2.10(e). 

Procurement and contract management 

41. Goods and services with a transaction value below R500 000 were procured without obtaining the required price 
quotations, as required by treasury regulation 16A6.1. 

Expenditure management 

42. The accounting authority did not take effective steps to prevent irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as 
required by section 51(1) (b) (ii) of the PFMA. 

Revenue management 

43. Effective and appropriate steps were not taken to collect all money due, as required by section 51(1) (b) (i) of the PFMA. 
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Asset management  

44. Proper control systems to safeguard and maintain assets were not implemented, as required by sections 50(1) (a) and 
51(1) (c) of the PFMA. 

Consequence management 

45. Effective and appropriate disciplinary steps were not taken against officials who incurred and permitted irregular and 
fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as required by section 51(1) (e) (iii) of the PFMA. 

Internal control 

46. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance report and compliance 
with legislation. The matters reported below are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the 
findings on the annual performance report and the findings on compliance with legislation included in this report. 

Leadership 

47. The previous council did not prioritise the recommendations from the previous management reports and the weaknesses 
and non-compliance matters were not addressed timeously. 

48. The accounting authority was not appointed for a large part of the year and there was a lack of continuity with the 
appointment of new members of the accounting authority, which lead to instability. 

49. Management and the previous council also did not implement consequences where staff transgressed supply chain 
management and other requirements. 

Financial and performance management 

50. The vacancies at the finance department, including the CFO position, impacted significantly on the maintenance of 
financial records, as well as effective internal controls.  This also led to errors in financial reporting not being detected 
before submission for auditing. 

Governance 

51. The accounting authority reprioritised the tasks of internal audit and therefore it did not perform the duties assigned to it in 
the PFMA.  Consequently, various internal control deficiencies were not detected during the year. 

52. The slow response by the accounting authority to appoint a new audit committee resulted in the audit committee not 
performing the majority of the duties assigned to it by the PFMA 

53.  

 

Bloemfontein 

21 September 2015 
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Board Of Members' Responsibilities and Approval 

 

The members are required by the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999), to maintain adequate accounting records 

and are responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information included 

in this report. It is the responsibility of the members to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state of 

affairs of the entity as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then 

ended. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements and was 

given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data. 
 
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 

Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board. 
 
The annual financial statements are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by 

reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates. 
 
The members acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the 
entity and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the members to meet 
these responsibilities, the board of members sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or deficit in 

a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, 
effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls 
are monitored throughout the entity and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the 

entity’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk 
management in the entity is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the entity. 
While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate 
infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and 

constraints. 
 
The members are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management that the system of 

internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the annual 

financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, 

assurance against material misstatement or deficit. 
 
The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the entity's annual financial statements. 

The annual financial statements have been examined by the entity's external auditors and their report is presented on page  
4. 
 
The annual financial statements set out on pages 4 to 51, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were 

approved by the board of members on 31 March, 2015 and were signed on its behalf by: 

 

 
 
 

 
Mrs. P.F. Lourens (Chairperson) Mr. N. Salimani (Acting Chief Executive Officer) 
 

 
*At the Date Signing of the Amended Annual Report CEO was not Available, hence the Acting CEO signed 
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Board of Members' Report 

 

The members submit their report for the year ended 31 March, 2015. 
 
1. Review of activities 
 
Main business and operations 
 
The entity's business consists of running a playhouse facility in the Free State to promote, develop and encourage the 

performing arts and to present it to the public for the development, appreciation and enjoyment of this form of culture; to 

contribute to the enhancement of artists, musicians composers and writers, thus giving them the opportunity to perform in 

front of the public; and to help talented pupils through bursaries to develop in the performing arts. 
 
There has been no major change in the nature of the business during the year under review. 
 
PACOFS is a Cultural institution in terms of section 3 of the Cultural Institutions Act, 1998. The legislation governing the 

entity's operations are chapter 6 of the PFMA, part 9, 16 and 16A of the Treasury Regulations. 
 
12. Financial results 
 
The financial results of the entity are fully disclosed in the attached annual financial statements. 
 
3. Going concern 
 
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This 

basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of 

liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 
 
The ability of the entity to continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of these 

are discussed in note 32 of these annual financial statements. 
 
4. Subsequent events 
 
The members are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year. 
 
5. Board Of Members 
 
The members of the entity during the year and to the date of this report are as follows: 
 
Name Nationality Changes 
Prof. S. Mahlomaholo (Chairperson) South African Appointed 01 December, 2014, resigned 
  23 March, 2015 
Mrs. O.R. Mochware (Deputy Chairperson) South African Appointed 01 December, 2014 
Mr. T. Segopolo South African Appointed 01 December, 2014 
Mr. Z. Mkiva South African Appointed 01 December, 2014 
Mr. C.J.T. Wing South African Appointed 01 December, 2014 
Mrs. M.A.D. Mnumzana South African Appointed 01 December, 2014 
Mrs. S.F.S Makhathini South African Appointed 01 December, 2014 
Mr. B. Mathibela South African Appointed 01 December, 2014 
Mr. R. Rashama (Chairperson) South African Resigned 30 September, 2014 
Ms. S.G. Mazibuko South African Resigned 30 September, 2014 
Adv. J.B. Mthembu South African Resigned 30 September, 2014 
Mr. M.M. Sefantsi South African Resigned 30 September, 2014 
Mrs. M. Thomasse-Pieterse South African Resigned 30 September, 2014 
Mr. W. Chakele South African Resigned 30 September, 2014 
Mr. T. Plaaitjie South African Resigned 30 September, 2014 
Mr. T. Mongake South African Resigned 30 September, 2014 
Mr. M.P. Moloi South African Resigned 30 September, 2014 
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March, 2015 
 
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2015 2014 

 

   Restated* 
 

     

Assets    
 

Current Assets    
 

Inventories 3 1,390,995 1,322,147 
 

Receivables from exchange transactions 4 277,912 165,945 
 

Cash and cash equivalents 5 16,983,549 11,719,725 
 

     

  18,652,456 13,207,817 
 

Non-Current Assets 

    

   
 

Property, plant and equipment 6 61,309,059 59,980,726 
 

Intangible assets 7 134,308 133,359 
 

Heritage assets 8 3,868,500 3,485,273 
 

     

  65,311,867 63,599,358 
 

Total Assets 
    

 83,964,323 76,807,175 
 

Liabilities    
 

Current Liabilities    
 

Deferred revenue 9 46,858,262 42,287,394 
 

Payables from exchange transactions 10 8,794,644 3,455,438 
 

Unspent conditional grants and receipts 11 7,698,404 8,321,047 
 

     

  63,351,310 54,063,879 
 

Non-Current Liabilities 

    

   
 

Employee benefit obligation 12 8,727,000 8,498,000 
 

Total Liabilities 
    

 72,078,310 62,561,879 
 

Net Assets  11,886,013 14,245,296 
 

Reserves    
 

Revaluation reserve  953,766 570,539 
 

Other NDR  595,821 132,456 
 

Accumulated surplus  10,336,426 13,542,301 
 

Total Net Assets 
    

 11,886,013 14,245,296 
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Statement of Financial Performance 

 
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2015 2014 

 

   Restated* 
 

     

Revenue    
 

Revenue from exchange transactions 
14 

  
 

Sale of goods 645,686 1,174,499 
 

Rendering of services 14 670,425 869,171 
 

Other income 16 1,319,489 1,292,972 
 

Interest received - investment 17 336,971 870,406 
 

Total revenue from exchange transactions 
    

 2,972,571 4,207,048 
 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions 

    

   
 

Transfer revenue 
18 

  
 

Government grants & subsidies 38,825,108 37,470,931 
 

Total revenue 14 
   

41,797,679 41,677,979 
 

Expenditure 
19 

   

  
 

Employee related costs (23,645,775) (21,615,038) 
 

Depreciation and amortisation 6&7 (3,571,490) (3,943,896) 
 

Finance costs 20 - (360) 
 

Repairs and maintenance 
21 

(696,926) (875,360) 
 

General Expenses (16,895,400) (21,647,653) 
 

Total expenditure 
    

 (44,809,591) (48,082,307) 
 

Operating deficit 22 
   

(3,011,912) (6,404,328) 
 

(Loss) gain on disposal of assets and liabilities  (193,961) 11,116 
 

Deficit for the year 

    

   
 

 (3,205,873) (6,393,212) 
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

 Revaluation Other NDR Total reserves Accumulated Total net 
 

Figures in Rand reserve   surplus assets 
 

       

Opening balance as previously reported 344,959 132,284 477,243 12,577,179 13,054,422 
 

Adjustments      
 

Prior year adjustments - - - 7,358,333 7,358,333 
 

Restated* Balance at April 01, 2013 
      

344,959 132,284 477,243 19,935,512 20,412,755 
 

Changes in net assets      
 

Revaluation of heritage assets 225,580 - 225,580 - 225,580 
 

Interest earned Trust Funds - 172 172 - 172 
 

Net income (losses) recognised directly in net 
      

225,580 172 225,752 - 225,752 
 

assets      
 

Deficit for the year - - - (6,393,211) (6,393,211) 
 

Total recognised income and expenses for 
      

225,580 172 225,752 (6,393,211) (6,167,459) 
 

the year      
 

Total changes 
      

225,580 172 225,752 (6,393,211) (6,167,459) 
 

       

Balance at April 01, 2014 570,539 132,456 702,995 13,542,298 14,245,293 
 

Changes in net assets      
 

Deficit for the year - - - (3,205,872) (3,205,872) 
 

Interest earned Trust Funds - 643 643 - 643 
 

Interest earned on SARB (Capital works) - 462,722 462,722 - 462,722 
 

Revaluation of heritage assets 383,227 - 383,227 - 383,227 
 

Total changes 
      

383,227 463,365 846,592 (3,205,872) (2,359,280) 
 

Balance at 31 March, 2015 
      

953,766 595,821 1,549,587 10,336,426 11,886,013 
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Cash Flow Statement 

 
Figures in Rand Note(s) 2015 2014 

 

   Restated* 
 

     

Cash flows from operating activities    
 

Receipts    
 

Sale of goods and services  2,523,624 3,450,331 
 

Cash received from government grants  38,202,465 37,467,390 
 

Interest income  336,971 870,406 
 

Interest transferred NDR  463,365 170 
 

     

  41,526,425 41,788,297 
 

Payments 

    

   
 

Employee costs  (23,416,775) (21,965,423) 
 

Cash paid to suppliers  (12,321,960) (22,221,529) 
 

Finance costs  - (360) 
 

     

  (35,738,735) (44,187,312) 
 

 

24 

   

Net cash flows from operating activities 5,787,690 (2,399,015) 
 

Cash flows from investing activities    
 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 6 (4,947,871) (5,352,268) 
 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 6 4,141 11,896 
 

Purchase of other intangible assets 7 (151,004) (185,486) 
 

     

Net cash flows from investing activities  (5,094,734) (5,525,858) 
 

Cash flows from financing activities    
 

Movements on deferred revenue  4,570,868 2,390,434 
 

     

Net cash flows from financing activities  4,570,868 2,390,434 
 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  5,263,824 (5,534,439) 
 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  11,719,725 17,254,164 
 

 

5 

   

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 16,983,549 11,719,725 
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts 
 
Budget on Accrual Basis 
 
 Approved Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference 

 

 budget   on comparable between final  
 

    basis budget and  
 

Figures in Rand     actual  
 

       

Statement of Financial Performance      
 

Revenue       
 

Revenue from exchange       
 

transactions   
220,383 

 
425,303 Note 37 - X1 

 

Sale of goods 441,086 (220,703) 645,686 
 

Rendering of services 1,291,697 (580,935) 710,762 670,425 (40,337) Note 37 - X2 
 

Other income 14,470,239 (1,735,176) 12,735,063 1,319,489 (11,415,574) Note 37 - X3 
 

Interest received - investment 1,650,000 (362,657) 1,287,343 336,971 (950,372) Note 37 - X4 
 

Total revenue from exchange 
       

17,853,022 (2,899,471) 14,953,551 2,972,571 (11,980,980)  
 

transactions       
 

Revenue from non-exchange 

       

      
 

transactions       
 

Transfer revenue   
37,802,800 

 
1,022,308 Note 37 - X5 

 

Government grants & subsidies 37,690,000 112,800 38,825,108 
 

Total revenue 
       

55,543,022 (2,786,671) 52,756,351 41,797,679 (10,958,672)  
 

Expenditure 

       

  
(26,774,198) 

 
3,128,423 Note 37 - X6 

 

Employee related costs (29,923,783) 3,149,585 (23,645,775) 
 

Depreciation and amortisation (3,858,750) 3 (3,858,747) (3,571,490) 287,257 Note 37 - X7 
 

Repairs and maintenance (917,145) 36,318 (880,827) (696,926) 183,901 Note 37 - X8 
 

General Expenses (20,843,344) (399,235) (21,242,579) (16,895,399) 4,347,180 Note 37 - X9 
 

Total expenditure 
       

(55,543,022) 2,786,671 (52,756,351) (44,809,590) 7,946,761  
 

Operating deficit 
       

- - - (3,011,911) (3,011,911)  
 

Loss on disposal of assets and - - - (193,961) (193,961) Note 37 - X10 
 

liabilities       
  

Deficit before taxation 
 
Actual Amount on Comparable 

Basis as Presented in the 

Budget and Actual 

Comparative Statement 

 
 

- - - (3,205,872) (3,205,872) 
     

- - - (3,205,872) (3,205,872) 
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Accounting Policies 

 
1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements 
 
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised 

Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) of the Public 

Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999). 
 
These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with 

historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African  
Rand. 
 
A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual 

financial statements, are disclosed below. 
 
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period. 
 
1.1 Going concern assumption 
 
These annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis applicable to a going concern. This basis presimes 

that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, 

contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 
 
The ability of the entity to continue is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of these are discussed in note 

32 of these annual financial statements. 
 
1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty 
 
In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 

amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the 

application of judgement are inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these 

estimates which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include: 
 
Receivables from exchange transactions 
 
The entity assesses its trade receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an 

impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the surplus makes judgements as to whether there is observable 

data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset. 
 
The impairment for receivables from exchange transactions is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss ratios, 

adjusted for national and industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that 

correlate with defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the portfolio and scaled to 

the estimated loss emergence period. 
 
Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete stock 
 
An allowance for stock to write stock down to the lower of cost or net realisable value. Management have made estimates of 

the selling price and direct cost to sell on certain inventory items. The write down is included in the operation surplus note. 
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1.2 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) 
 
Fair value estimation 
 
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as trading and available -for-sale securities) is based 

on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the 

entity is the current bid price. 
 
The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair 

values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash 

flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the entity for similar financial instruments. 
 
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the counter derivatives) is 

determined by using valuation techniques. The entity uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on 

market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments 

are used for long -term debt. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value 

for the remaining financial instruments. The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the 

estimated future cash flows. The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using quoted forward 

exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. 
 
Provisions for interest have been made to show financial liabilities as trade and other payables at fair value on the financial 

statements. The discount rate used is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 

and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. 
 
Provisions 
 
Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional disclosure 

of these estimates of provisions is included in note - Provisions. 
 
Post-retirement benefits 
 
The present value of the post retirement obligation depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis 

using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) include the discount rate. Any 

changes in these assumptions will impact on the carrying amount of post retirement obligations. 
 
The entity determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be used to 

determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the pension obligations. In 

determining the appropriate discount rate, the entity considers the interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are 

denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of 

the related pension liability. 
 
Other key assumptions for post-retirement obligations are based on current market conditions. Additional information is 

disclosed in Note 12. 
 
Effective interest rate 
 
The entity used the prime interest rate to discount future cash flows. 
 
Allowance for doubtful debts 
 
On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The 

impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future 

cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition. 
 
1.3 Property, plant and equipment 
 
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the 

production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used  
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during more than one period. 
 
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:  

 it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
 the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
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1.3 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 
 
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. 
 
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to 

the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade 

discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. 
 
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition. 
 
Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a 

combination of monetary and non -monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the 

acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up. 
 
When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for 

as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 
 
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred 

subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of 

property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. 
 
The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also 

included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the 

obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories. 
 
Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the 

location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 
 
Major spare parts and stand by equipment which are expected to be used for more than one period are included in property, 

plant and equipment. In addition, spare parts and stand by equipment which can only be used in connection with an item of 

property, plant and equipment are accounted for as property, plant and equipment. 
 
Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet 

the recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any 

remaining inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised. 
 
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. 
 
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated 

residual value. 
 
Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. 
 
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows: 
 
 
Item Average useful life 
Computer equipment 3 - 5 years 
Furniture and fittings 8 - 15 years 
Motor vehicles 5 - 15 years 
Musical instruments 5 - 25 years 
Permanent advertising structures 5 - 15 years 
Photographic equipment 5 - 12 years 
Sound equipment 5 - 25 years 
Theatre equipment 5 - 25 years 
Wadrobe equipment 5 - 12 years 
Workshop machinery 5 - 25 years 
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The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting 

date. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate. 
 
Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimate unless 

expectations differ from the previous estimate. 
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1.3  Property, plant and equipment (continued) 
 
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is 

depreciated separately. 
 
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of 

another asset. 
 
Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further 

economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset. 
 
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit 

when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment 

is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item. 
 
Assets which the entity holds for rentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as part of the ordinary course of activities, 

are transferred to inventories when the rentals end and the assets are available- for-sale. These assets are not accounted 

for as non-current assets held for sale. Proceeds from sales of these assets are recognised as revenue. All cash flows on 

these assets are included in cash flows from operating activities in the cash flow statement. 
 
1.4  Intangible assets 
 
An asset is identifiable if it either:  

 is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or 
exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of 
whether the entity intends to do so; or

 arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are 

transferable or separable from the entity or from other rights and obligations.
 
A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were 

in the form of a contract. 
 
An intangible asset is recognised when:  

 it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will 
flow to the entity; and

 the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
 
Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is 

measured at its fair value as at that date. 
 
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. 
 
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no 

foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. 

Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is 

an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight line basis 

over their useful life. 
 
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date. 
 
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows: 
 
Item Useful life  
Computer software 1 year 
 
Intangible assets are derecognised:  

 on disposal; or
 when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal.
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1.5 Heritage assets 
 
Assets are resources controlled by an entity as a result of past events and from which future economic benefits or service 

potential are expected to flow to the entity. 
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1.5  Heritage assets (continued) 
 
Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised after deducting accumulated impairment losses. 
 
Class of heritage assets means a grouping of heritage assets of a similar nature or function in an entity’s operations that is 

shown as a single item for the purpose of disclosure in the annual financial statements. 
 
Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consideration given to acquire an asset at 

the time of its acquisition or construction or, where applicable, the amount attributed to that asset when initially recognised 

in accordance with the specific requirements of other Standards of GRAP. 
 
Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. 
 
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties 

in an arm’s length transaction. 
 
Heritage assets are assets that have a cultural, environmental, historical, natural, scientific, technological or artistic 

significance and are held indefinitely for the benefit of present and future generations. 
 
An impairment loss of a cash-generating asset is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 

recoverable amount. 
 
An impairment loss of a non-cash-generating asset is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 

recoverable service amount. 
 
Recoverable amount is the higher of a cash-generating asset’s net selling price and its value in use. 
 
Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. 
 
Value in use of a cash-generating asset is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset 

or cash-generating unit. 
 
Value in use of a non-cash-generating asset is the present value of the asset’s remaining service potential. 
 
Recognition 
 
The entity recognises a heritage asset as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential 

associated with the asset will flow to the entity, and the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. 
 
Initial measurement 
 
Heritage assets are measured at cost. 
 
Where a heritage asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is measured at its fair value as at the date 

of acquisition. 
 
Subsequent measurement 
 
After recognition as an asset, a class of heritage assets, whose fair value can be measured reliably, is carried at a revalued 

amount, being its fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent impairment losses. 
 
If a heritage asset’s carrying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase is credited directly to a 

revaluation surplus. However, the increase is recognised in surplus or deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation 

decrease of the same heritage asset previously recognised in surplus or deficit. 
 
If a heritage asset’s carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation, the decrease is recognised in surplus or 

deficit. However, the decrease is debited directly to a revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the 

revaluation surplus in respect of that heritage asset. 
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Impairment 
 
The entity assess at each reporting date whether there is an indication that it may be impaired. If any such indication exists, 

the entity estimates the recoverable amount or the recoverable service amount of the heritage asset. 
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1.5  Heritage assets (continued) 
 
Transfers 
 
Transfers from heritage assets are only made when the particular asset no longer meets the definition of a heritage asset. 
 
Transfers to heritage assets are only made when the asset meets the definition of a heritage asset. 
 
Derecognition 
 
The entity derecognises heritage asset on disposal, or when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected 

from its use or disposal. 
 
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of a heritage asset is determined as the difference between the net disposal 

proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the heritage asset. Such difference is recognised in surplus or deficit when the 

heritage asset is derecognised. 
 
1.6  Financial instruments 
 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual 

interest of another entity. 
 
The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is 

measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective 

interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or 

through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility. 
 
A concessionary loan is a loan granted to or received by an entity on terms that are not market related. 
 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to 

discharge an obligation. 
 
Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s statement of 

financial position. 
 
A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics:  

 Its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity 
price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in 
the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract (sometimes called 
the ‘underlying’).

 It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other 
types of contracts that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors.

 It is settled at a future date.
 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or 
group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant 
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the 
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial 
asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all 
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future 
credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an 
integral part of the effective interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction 
costs, and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of 
similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably 
estimate the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use 
the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments). 
 
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties  
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in an arm’s length transaction. 

 A financial asset is:  
 cash;
 a residual interest of another entity; or

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 




 



 

Page | 79 
 
 

 
 
Performing Arts Centre of the Free State  
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2015 
 

Accounting Policies 

 
1.6 Financial instruments (continued)  

 a contractual right to:
- receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or 
- exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially 

favourable to the entity. 
 
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for 

a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified 

terms of a debt instrument. 
 
A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:  

 deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
 exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.

 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 

in market interest rates. 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial 

liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. 
 
Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. 
 
Loans payable are financial liabilities, other than short-term payables on normal credit terms. 
 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 

market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. 
 
Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 

in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by 

factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded 

in the market. 
 
A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due. 
 
A residual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. A 

residual interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as:  
 equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital;
 a formal designation of a transfer of resources (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as 

forming part of an entity’s net assets, either before the contribution occurs or at the time of the contribution; or
 a formal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existing financial interest in the 

net assets of an entity.
 
Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset 

or financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or 

disposed of the financial instrument. 
 
Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have 

fixed or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:  
 the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or
 are held for trading.

 
Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active 

market, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. 
 
Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are:  

 derivatives;
 combined instruments that are designated at fair value;
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1.6 Financial instruments (continued)  

 instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for trading if:
- it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near-term; or 
- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and 
for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term profit-taking; 
- non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated 
at fair value at initial recognition; and 
- financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial 

instruments at cost. 
 
Classification 
 
The entity has the following types of financial assets (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of 

financial position or in the notes thereto: 

 
Class Category  

Cash and cash equivalents Financial asset measured at amortised cost  
Receivables from exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost 

 
The entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of 

financial position or in the notes thereto: 

 
Class Category  

Payables from exchange transactions Financial liability measured at amortised cost 
Unspent conditional grants and receipts Financial liability measured at amortised cost 

 
The entity has the following types of residual interests (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the statement of 

financial position or in the notes thereto: 
 
Initial recognition 
 
The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a 

party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
 
The entity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting. 
 
Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities 
 
The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly 

attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability. 
 
The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value [if subsequently measured at fair value]. 
 
The entity first assesses whether the substance of a concessionary loan is in fact a loan. On initial recognition, the entity 

analyses a concessionary loan into its component parts and accounts for each component separately. The entity accounts 

for that part of a concessionary loan that is:  
 a social benefit in accordance with the Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements, 

where it is the issuer of the loan; or
 non-exchange revenue, in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions 

(Taxes and Transfers), where it is the recipient of the loan.
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1.6  Financial instruments (continued) 
 
Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities 
 
The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following categories:  

 Financial instruments at fair value.
 Financial instruments at amortised cost.
 Financial instruments at cost.

 
All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review. 
 
Fair value measurement considerations 
 
The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial instrument is not active, the 
entity establishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The objective of using a valuation technique is to establish what 
the transaction price would have been on the measurement date in an arm’s length exchange motivated by normal 
operating considerations. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions between 
knowledgeable, willing parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the 
same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models. If there is a valuation technique commonly used by market 
participants to price the instrument and that technique has been demonstrated to provide reliable estimates of prices 
obtained in actual market transactions, the entity uses that technique. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum 
use of market inputs and relies as little as possible on entity-specific inputs. It incorporates all factors that market 
participants would consider in setting a price and is consistent with accepted economic methodologies for pricing financial 
instruments. Periodically, an entity calibrates the valuation technique and tests it for validity using prices from any 
observable current market transactions in the same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on any 
available observable market data. 
 
The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the amount payable on 

demand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid. 
 
Reclassification 
 
The entity does not reclassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is:  

 combined instrument that is required to be measured at fair value; or
 an investment in a residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassification.

 
Where the entity cannot reliably measure the fair value of an embedded derivative that has been separated from a host 

contract that is a financial instrument at a subsequent reporting date, it measures the combined instrument at fair value. 

This requires a reclassification of the instrument from amortised cost or cost to fair value. 
 
If fair value can no longer be measured reliably for an investment in a residual interest measured at fair value, the entity 

reclassifies the investment from fair value to cost. The carrying amount at the date that fair value is no longer available 

becomes the cost. 
 
If a reliable measure becomes available for an investment in a residual interest for which a measure was previously not 

available, and the instrument would have been required to be measured at fair value, the entity reclassifies the instrument 

from cost to fair value. 
 
Gains and losses 
 
A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is 

recognised in surplus or deficit. 
 
For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or 

deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process. 
 
Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets 
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The entity assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group  

 

 

 

of financial assets is impaired. 
 
Financial assets measured at amortised cost: 
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1.6  Financial instruments (continued) 
 
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the 

amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated 

future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original 

effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly OR through the use of an allowance account. 

The amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit. 
 
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an 

event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed directly OR by 

adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what 

the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The 

amount of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit. 
 
Financial assets measured at cost: 
 
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual interest that is not 

measured at fair value because its fair value cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the impairment loss is measured 

as the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows 

discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed. 
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1.6  Financial instruments (continued) 
 
Derecognition 
 
Financial assets 
 
The entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting. 
 
The entity derecognises a financial asset only when:  

 the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived;
 the entity transfers to another party substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; 

or
 the entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, has 

transferred control of the asset to another party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the asset in its 
entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose 
additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the entity :

- derecognise the asset; and 
- recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer. 

 
The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights or obligations retained and those transferred 

on the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair 

values at that date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is 

recognised in surplus or deficit in the period of the transfer. 
 
If the entity transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for derecognition in its entirety and retains the right to 

service the financial asset for a fee, it recognise either a servicing asset or a servicing liability for that servicing contract. If 

the fee to be received is not expected to compensate the entity adequately for performing the servicing, a servicing liability 

for the servicing obligation is recognised at its fair value. If the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate 

compensation for the servicing, a servicing asset is recognised for the servicing right at an amount determined on the basis 

of an allocation of the carrying amount of the larger financial asset. 
 
If, as a result of a transfer, a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the entity obtaining a 

new financial asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the entity recognise the new financial asset, 

financial liability or servicing liability at fair value. 
 
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the 

consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit. 
 
If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred qualifies for derecognition in its entirety, the 

previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the 

part that is derecognised, based on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer. For this purpose, a 

retained servicing asset is treated as a part that continues to be recognised. The difference between the carrying amount 

allocated to the part derecognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part derecognised is recognised in 

surplus or deficit. 
 
If a transfer does not result in derecognition because the entity has retained substantially all the risks and rewards of 

ownership of the transferred asset, the entity continue to recognise the transferred asset in its entirety and recognise a 

financial liability for the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the entity recognises any revenue on the transferred 

asset and any expense incurred on the financial liability. Neither the asset, and the associated liability nor the revenue, and 

the associated expenses are offset. 
 
Financial liabilities 
 
The entity removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial position when it is 

extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived. 
 
An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for 

as having extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liability is recognised. Similarly, a substantial  
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modification of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having extinguished the original 

financial liability and having recognised a new financial liability. 
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1.6  Financial instruments (continued) 
 
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transferred 

to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised 

in surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, forgiven or assumed by another entity by way of a non- exchange 

transaction are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions 

(Taxes and Transfers). 
 
Presentation 
 
Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in 

surplus or deficit. 
 
Dividends or similar distributions relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as 

revenue or expense in surplus or deficit. 
 
Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or 

expense in surplus or deficit. 
 
Distributions to holders of residual interests are debited by the entity directly to net assets. Transaction costs incurred on 

residual interests is accounted for as a deduction from net assets. 
 
A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position 

when the entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a 

net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
 
In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the entity does not offset the 

transferred asset and the associated liability. 
 
1.7  Tax 
 
Tax expenses 
 
Provision for South African normal taxation has not been made as the entity is exempt from income tax in terms of section 

10(1)(a) of the income tax act. 
 
1.8  Leases 
 
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease 

is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. 
 
Operating leases - lessee 
 
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference 

between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset 

or liability. 
 
1.9  Inventories 
 
Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then 

their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition. 
 
Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
 
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for;  

 distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or
 consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.
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Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion 

and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution. 
 
Current replacement cost is the cost the entity incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date. 
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1.9  Inventories (continued) 
 
The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 

inventories to their present location and condition. 
 
The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for 

specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs. 
 
The cost of inventories is assigned using the first- in, first-out (FIFO) formula. The same cost formula is used for all 

inventories having a similar nature and use to the entity. 
 
When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which 

the related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are 

distributed, or related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current 

replacement cost and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. 

The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current 

replacement cost, are recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in 

which the reversal occurs. 
 
Obsolete, redundant and slow moving inventories are identified and are written down to their estimated net realisable 

values. 
 
1.10 Employee benefits 
 
Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees. 
 
Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a result of either:  

 an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date; or
 an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.

 
Other long-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than post-employment benefits and termination benefits) 

that are not due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related 

service. 
 
Vested employee benefits are employee benefits that are not conditional on future employment. 
 
Composite social security programmes are established by legislation and operate as multi -employer plans to provide post-

employment benefits as well as to provide benefits that are not consideration in exchange for service rendered by 

employees. 
 
A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where by an established pattern of past 

practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will 

accept certain responsibilities and as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties 

that it will discharge those responsibilities. 
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1.10 Employee benefits (continued) 
 
Short-term employee benefits 
 
Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within 

twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service. 
 
Short-term employee benefits include items such as:  

 wages, salaries and social security contributions;
 short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for 

the absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the 
employees render the related employee service;

 bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting 
period in which the employees render the related service; and

 non-monetary benefits (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, 

cars and cellphones) for current employees.
 
When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognise the undiscounted 

amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:  
 as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the 

undiscounted amount of the benefits, the entity recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent 
that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

 as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.
 
The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase 

their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The entity measure the expected 

cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the 

unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date. 
 
The entity recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a present 

legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation 

can be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments. 
 
Post-employment benefits: Defined contribution plans 
 
Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate 

entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold suff icient 

assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. 
 
When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognise the contribution 

payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service:  
 as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid 

exceeds the contribution due for service before the reporting date, an entity recognise that excess as an asset 
(prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a 
cash refund; and

 as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the contribution in the cost of an 

asset.
 
Where contributions to a defined contribution plan do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of the reporting 

period in which the employees render the related service, they are discounted. The rate used to discount reflects the time 

value of money. The currency and term of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent 

with the currency and estimated term of the obligation. 
 
Contributions to defined contribution funds are charged against income as incurred. 
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1.10 Employee benefits (continued) 
 
Post-employment benefits: Defined benefit plans 
 
Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined contribution plans. 
 
Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the previous actuarial 

assumptions and what has actually occurred) and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions. In measuring its defined 

benefit liability the entity recognise actuarial gains and losses in surplus or deficit in the reporting period in which they occur. 
 
Assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund are assets (other than non -transferable financial instruments issued by 

the reporting entity) that are held by an entity (a fund) that is legally separate from the reporting entity and exists solely to 

pay or fund employee benefits and are available to be used only to pay or fund employee benefits, are not available to the 

reporting entity’s own creditors (even in liquidation), and cannot be returned to the reporting entity, unless either:  
 the remaining assets of the fund are sufficient to meet all the related employee benefit obligations of the plan or 

the reporting entity; or
 the assets are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee benefits already paid.

 
Current service cost is the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in 

the current period. 
 
Interest cost is the increase during a period in the present value of a defined benefit obligation which arises because the 

benefits are one period closer to settlement. 
 
Past service cost is the change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for employee service in prior periods, 

resulting in the current period from the introduction of, or changes to, post-employment benefits or other long- term 

employee benefits. Past service cost may be either positive (when benefits are introduced or changed so that the present 

value of the defined benefit obligation increases) or negative (when existing benefits are changed so that the present value 

of the defined benefit obligation decreases). In measuring its defined benefit liability the entity recognise past service cost 

as an expense in the reporting period in which the plan is amended. 
 
Past service costs are recognised as an expense on a straight- line basis over the average period until the benefits become 

vested. To the extent that the benefits are already vested, past service costs are recognised immediately. 
 
Plan assets comprise assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund and qualifying insurance policies. 
 
The present value of a defined benefit obligation is the present value, without deducting any plan assets, of expected future 

payments required to settle the obligation resulting from employee service in the current and prior periods. 
 
The return on plan assets is interest, dividends or similar distributions and other revenue derived from the plan assets, 

together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the plan assets, less any costs of administering the plan (other 

than those included in the actuarial assumptions used to measure the defined benefit obligation) and less any tax payable 

by the plan itself. 
 
The entity account not only for its legal obligation under the formal terms of a defined benefit plan, but also for any 

constructive obligation that arises from the entity’s informal practices. Informal practices give rise to a constructive 

obligation where the entity has no realistic alternative but to pay employee benefits. An example of a constructive obligation 

is where a change in the entity’s informal practices would cause unacceptable damage to its relationship with employees. 
 
The amount recognised as a defined benefit liability is the net total of the following amounts:  

 the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date;
 minus the fair value at the reporting date of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are to be settled 

directly;
 plus any liability that may arise as a result of a minimum funding requirement

 
The amount determined as a defined benefit liability may be negative (an asset). The entity measure the resulting asset at 

the lower of: 
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 the amount determined above; and
 the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future 

contributions to the plan. The present value of these economic benefits is determined using a discount rate which 

reflects the time value of money.
 
Any adjustments arising from the limit above is recognised in surplus or deficit. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

Page | 92 
 
 

 

 
 
Performing Arts Centre of the Free State  
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2015 
 

Accounting Policies 

 
1.10 Employee benefits (continued) 
 
The entity determine the present value of defined benefit obligations and the fair value of any plan assets with sufficient 

regularity such that the amounts recognised in the annual financial statements do not differ materially from the amounts that 

would be determined at the reporting date. 
 
The entity recognises the net total of the following amounts in surplus or deficit, except to the extent that another Standard 

requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset:  
 current service cost;
 interest cost;
 the expected return on any plan assets and on any reimbursement rights;
 actuarial gains and losses;
 past service cost;
 the effect of any curtailments or settlements; and
 the effect of applying the limit on a defined benefit asset (negative defined benefit liability).

 
The entity uses the Projected Unit Credit Method to determine the present value of its defined benefit obligations and the 

related current service cost and, where applicable, past service cost. The Projected Unit Credit Method (sometimes known 

as the accrued benefit method pro-rated on service or as the benefit/years of service method) sees each period of service 

as giving rise to an additional unit of benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. 
 
In determining the present value of its defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and, where applicable, 
past service cost, an entity shall attribute benefit to periods of service under the plan’s benefit formula. However, if an 

employee’s service in later years will lead to a materially higher level of benefit than in earlier years, an entity shall attribute 

benefit on a straight-line basis from:  
 the date when service by the employee first leads to benefits under the plan (whether or not the benefits are 

conditional on further service); until
 the date when further service by the employee will lead to no material amount of further benefits under the plan, 

other than from further salary increases.
 
Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately for each plan. The results of the 

valuation are updated for any material transactions and other material changes in circumstances (including changes in 

market prices and interest rates) up to the reporting date. 
 
The entity recognises gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or 

settlement occurs. The gain or loss on a curtailment or settlement comprises:  
 any resulting change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation; and
 any resulting change in the fair value of the plan assets.

 
Before determining the effect of a curtailment or settlement, the entity re-measure the obligation (and the related plan 

assets, if any) using current actuarial assumptions (including current market interest rates and other current market prices). 
 
When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit 

obligation, the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. The asset is measured at fair value. In all other 

respects, the asset is treated in the same way as plan assets. In surplus or deficit, the expense relating to a defined benefit 

plan is presented as the net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement. 
 
1.11 Provisions and contingencies 
 
Provisions are recognised when:  

 the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
 it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to 

settle the obligation; and
 a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

 
The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at 

the reporting date. 
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Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures 
expected to be required to settle the obligation. 
 
The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 

to the liability. 
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1.11 Provisions and contingencies (continued) 
 
Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This 

increase is recognised as an interest expense. 
 
A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. 
 
Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits. 
 
If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and 

measured as a provision. 
 
A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:  

 has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:
- the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating unit concerned; 
- the principal locations affected; 
- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being 
terminated; 
- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and 
- when the plan will be implemented; and 

 has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that 

plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.
 
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 26. 
 
1.12 Commitments 
 
Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in the 

outflow of cash. 
 
Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments. 
 
Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial 

statements, if both the following criteria are met:  
 Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer or 

building maintenance services); and
 Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity – therefore salary 

commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded.


1.13 Revenue from exchange transactions 
 
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result 

in an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 
 
An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and 

directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in 

exchange. 
 
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties 

in an arm’s length transaction. 
 
Revenue comprises of government grants, ticket sales and net invoiced sales to customers, investment income and other 

non-operating income. 
 
Measurement 
 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume 

rebates. 
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1.13 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued) 
 
Sale of goods 
 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:  

 the entity has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;
 the entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor 

effective control over the goods sold;
 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; 

and
 the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

 
Rendering of services 
 
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with 

the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome 

of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied: 
 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
 it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity;
 the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
 the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

 
Ticket sale income on own productions and commission income on ticket sales of third party productions are recognised 

when the events, to which the sales relate, have been successfully staged. 
 
When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is 

recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable. 
 
Interest 
 
Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends or similar distributions is 

recognised when:  
 It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity, 

and
 The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

 
Interest is recognised in surplus or deficit on a time proportion basis, taking account of the principal outstanding and the 

effective rate over the year to maturity. 
 
1.14 Revenue from non-exchange transactions 
 
Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, which 

represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 
 
Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential 

embodied in the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service 

potential must be returned to the transferor. 
 
Control of an asset arise when the entity can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and can 

exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit. 
 
Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and 

directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in 

exchange. 
 
Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non- exchange transaction, an entity 

either receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to 

another entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange. 
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Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be 

used, but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not 

deployed as specified. 
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1.14 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued) 
 
Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of a 

transferred asset by entities external to the reporting entity. 
 
Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes. 
 
Recognition 
 
An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the 

extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow. 
 
As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange 

transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of 

revenue equal to that reduction. 
 
Measurement 
 
Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the 

entity. 
 
When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to 

the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a 

liability. Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to 

settle the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. 

When a liability is subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the 

reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue. 
 
Transfers / Government grants 
 
Apart from Services in kind, which are not recognised, the entity recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the 

transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset. 
 
The entity recognises an asset in respect of transfers when the transferred resources meet the definition of an asset and 

satisfy the criteria for recognition as an asset. 
 
Transferred assets are measured at their fair value as at the date of acquisition. 
 
Government grants are recognised when it is propable that future economic benefits will flow to the public entity and these 

benefits can be measured reliably. The grant is recognised to the extend that there are no further obligations arising from 

the receipt of the grant. 
 
1.15 Cost of sales 
 
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which the 

related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write -down of inventories to net realisable value and all deficits of 

inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any 

write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of 

inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs. 
 
The related cost of providing services recognised as revenue in the current period is included in cost of sales. 
 
Contract costs comprise:  

 costs that relate directly to the specific contract;
 costs that are attributable to contract activity in general and can be allocated to the contract on a systematic and 

rational basis; and
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 such other costs as are specifically chargeable to the customer under the terms of the contract.


 
 
 

1.16 Investment income 
 
Investment income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method
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1.17 Comparative figures 
 
Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year. 
 
1.18 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
 
Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been 

exercised. 
 
All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 

performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of 

the expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. 
 
1.19 Irregular expenditure 
 
Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in 

contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including -  
(a) this Act; or 
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or 
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government. 

 
National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA 

requires the following (effective from 1 April 2008): 
 
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned before year end 

and/or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure 

register. In such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial 

statements. 
 
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being 

awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of 

updating the note to the financial statements. 
 
Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, 

the register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned. 
 
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the 
National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for 

the irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. 
Immediate steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the 
accounting officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant 

note to the financial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular 
expenditure has not been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the 
relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly 

in the irregular expenditure register. 
 
1.20 Conditional grants and receipts 
 
Revenue received from conditional grants, donations and funding are recognised as revenue to the extent that the entity 

has complied with any of the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the agreement. To the extent that the criteria, 

conditions or obligations have not been met a liability is recognised. 
 
1.21 Budget information 
 
Entity are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), which is 

given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar. 
 
General purpose financial reporting by the entity shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in  
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accordance with the legally adopted budget. 
 
The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 01-Apr-14 to 31-Mar-15. 
 
The budget for the economic entity includes all the entities approved budgets under its control. 
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1.21 Budget information (continued) 
 
The annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the 

budgeted amounts for the reporting period have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual 

amounts. 
 
The annual budget figures have been prepared in accordance with the GRAP standards, and are cinsistent with the 

accounting policies adopted by Council for the preparation of the financial statements. The amounts are scheduled as a 

separate additional financial statements, called the statement of comparison of budget and actual. Explanotory comments 

are provided in the notes to the financial statements, firstly stating reasons for overall growth or decline in the budget, and 

secondly motivating overspanding and underspending on line items. 
 
The annual budget figures included in the financial statements are for the entity. These figures are those approved by 

Council both at teh beginning and during the year. 
 
Comparative information is not required. 
 
1.22 Related parties 
 
The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African 

Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only 

entities within the national sphere of government are considered to be related parties. 
 
Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including those 

charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform 

such functions. 
 
Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or 

be influenced by, that management in their dealings with the entity. 
 
Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed. 
 
1.23 Interdepartmental transactions 
 
Interdepartmental transactions are eliminated for the preparation of the annual financial statements. 
 
1.24 Finance costs 
 
Finance costs are expensed within the period in which they are incurred. 
 
 
1.25 Income received in advance 
 
Deferred income received from government and other contributors are brought to account on a receipt basis and are utilised 

to subsidise specific operating expenditure associated with a particular project. 
 
Unutilised subsidies are carried forward to the next financial year. 
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2. New standards and interpretations 
 
2.1  Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective 
 
The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for 

the entity’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April, 2015 or later periods: 
 
Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date: Expected impact: 
   Years beginning on or   

   after   

  GRAP 20: Related parties 01 April, 2016 The impact of the 
     amendment is not material. 

3. Inventories     

Trade Inventory   881,591 838,017 
Maintenance and consumable stores   609,452 622,195 
       

     1,491,043 1,460,212 
Inventories (write-downs)   (100,048) (138,065) 
       

     1,390,995 1,322,147 

Inventory pledged as security     

There were no inventory pledged as security.     

4. Receivables from exchange transactions     

Trade debtors   368,604 272,928 
Sundry debtors   61,713 56,746 
Accrued income   10,926 21,487 
Provision for impairment receivables from exchange transactions   (163,331) (185,216) 
       

     277,912 165,945 
 
Trade and other receivables originating at the Performing Arts Centre of the Free State are not initially recognised at fair 

value and subsequently carried at amortised cost, less provision for credit losses. Discounting is done on the remaining 

balances, as these accounts are normally paid in 30 days. 
 
Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired 
 
Included in the Entity's trade receivable balance are debtors with a carrying amount of R 205 272 (2014: R 77 001) which 

are past due at the reporting date for which the Entity has not provided as there has not been significant change in credit 

quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Entity does not hold any collateral over these balances. The 

average age of these receivables are 120 days (2014: 120 days) 
 
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:   

Trade and other receivables - Ageing of past due but not impaired   
0 - 30 days 46,312 10,310 
30 - 60 days 1,449 (830) 
60 - 90 days 6,889 - 
90 - 120 days 4,828 (32,971) 
Over 120 days 145,794 100,492 
    



 

Page | 103 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 

205,272 77,001 
 
In determining the recoverability of trade receivable, the Entity considers any change in the credit quality of the trade 

receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to 

the customer base being large and unrelated. Accordingly, management believe that there is no further credit provision 

required in excess of the allowance for credit losses. 
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4. Receivables from exchange transactions (continued)   

Trade and other receivables impaired   

The ageing of the receivables is as follows:   

3 to 6 months 163,331 185,215 

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables   

Opening balance 185,215 191,794 
Provision for impairment (21,884) (6,579) 
    

  163,331 185,215 

5. Cash and cash equivalents   

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:   

Short-term deposits 9,480,486 11,379,797 
Bank balances 7,352,764 119,106 
Other cash and cash equivalents 133,099 132,456 
Cash on hand 17,200 88,365 
    

  16,983,549 11,719,724 

Cash and cash equivalents held by the entity that are not available for use by the 133,099 132,456 
economic entity   
 
The cash and cash equivalents not available for use consist of pension funds accumulated by former employees for the 

benefit of their children as well as money bequeathed by benefactors to PACOFS for the development of arts. The funds 

are restricted and not available for use. 
 
6. Property, plant and equipment 

 
  2015   2014  

 

      

 Cost / Accumulated Carrying value Cost / Accumulated Carrying value 
 

 Valuation depreciation  Valuation depreciation  
 

  and   and  
 

  accumulated   accumulated  
 

  impairment   impairment  
 

Capital Work in Progress 23,257,617 - 23,257,617 42,287,394 - 42,287,394 
 

Furniture and fixtures 7,427,515 (4,852,160) 2,575,355 7,651,309 (4,040,165) 3,611,144 
 

Motor vehicles 652,673 (444,775) 207,898 652,673 (377,301) 275,372 
 

Computer equipment 2,274,169 (1,365,290) 908,879 2,070,517 (941,555) 1,128,962 
 

Assets held for transfer 23,600,645 - 23,600,645 - - - 
 

Wardrobe equipment 252,237 (141,467) 110,770 257,141 (128,350) 128,791 
 

Photographic equipment 6,299 (1,260) 5,039 - - - 
 

Permanent advertising structures 471,761 (394,619) 77,142 471,761 (356,048) 115,713 
 

Theatre equipment 9,988,469 (7,235,854) 2,752,615 10,002,886 (6,278,921) 3,723,965 
 

Sound equipment 10,994,845 (6,702,079) 4,292,766 11,030,438 (6,028,230) 5,002,208 
 

Musical instruments 3,685,674 (530,025) 3,155,649 3,706,556 (445,942) 3,260,614 
 

Workshop machinery 907,363 (542,679) 364,684 929,561 (482,998) 446,563 
 

Total 
       

83,519,267 (22,210,208) 61,309,059 79,060,236 (19,079,510) 59,980,726 
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6. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 
 
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2015 
 
   Opening Additions Disposals Transfers Depreciation Total 
   balance          

Capital Work in Progress 42,287,394  4,570,868  - (23,600,645)  - 23,257,617  
Furniture and fixtures 3,611,145  5,850  (94,034)  -  (947,606) 2,575,355  
Motor vehicles 275,371  -  -  -  (67,474) 207,897  
Computer equipment 1,128,962  228,903  (9,325)  -  (439,661) 908,879  
Assets held for transfer -  -  -  23,600,645  - 23,600,645  
Wardrobe equipment 128,791  -  (2,452)  -  (15,568) 110,771  
Photographic equipment -  6,298  -  -  (1,258) 5,040  
Permanent advertising 115,713  -  -  -  (38,571) 77,142  
structures            

Theatre equipment 3,723,965  61,733  (15,846)  -  (1,017,237) 2,752,615  
Sound equipment 5,002,208  74,219  (54,905)  -  (728,756) 4,292,766  
Musical instruments 3,260,614  -  (10,441)  -  (94,524) 3,155,649  
Workshop machinery 446,563  -  (11,099)  -  (70,780) 364,684  
              

   59,980,726  4,947,871  (198,102)  -  (3,421,435) 61,309,060  

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2014         

     Opening Additions Disposals Depreciation Total 
     balance         

Capital Work in Progress   38,311,425  3,975,969  -  - 42,287,394  
Furniture and fixtures   3,756,402  985,387  -  (1,130,644) 3,611,145  
Motor vehicles   397,569  -  -  (122,198) 275,371  
Computer equipment   926,275  333,946  -  (131,259) 1,128,962  
Wardrobe equipment   169,545  -  -  (40,754) 128,791  
Permanent advertising structures   60,308  -  -  55,405 115,713  
Theatre equipment   5,530,734  -  -  (1,806,769) 3,723,965  
Sound equipment   5,451,181  55,661  (780)  (503,854) 5,002,208  
Musical instruments   3,334,820  -  -  (74,206) 3,260,614  
Workshop machinery   520,981  1,305  -  (75,723) 446,563  
              

     58,459,240  5,352,268  (780)  (3,830,002) 59,980,726  

7.   Intangible assets            
              

     2015      2014   
        

   Cost / Accumulated Carrying value Cost /  Accumulated Carrying value 
   Valuation amortisation    Valuation  amortisation   

     and      and   

     accumulated      accumulated   

     impairment      impairment   

Computer software 529,672 (395,364) 134,308  378,668 (245,309) 133,359 
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7. Intangible assets (continued) 
 
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2015 
 
   Opening Additions Disposals Amortisation  Total 

 

   balance         
 

Computer software   133,359 151,004   - (150,056)  134,307  
 

            

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2014          
 

   Opening Additions Disposals Amortisation  Total 
 

   balance         
 

Computer software   41,631 185,486   - (93,758)  133,359  
 

8.   Heritage assets 

            

           
 

            
 

   2015     2014    
 

       

 Cost / Accumulated Carrying value Cost / Accumulated Carrying value 
 

 Valuation impairment    Valuation impairment    
 

   losses     losses    
 

Art Collections, antiquities and 3,868,500 - 3,868,500  3,485,273 - 3,485,273 
 

exhibits            
 

            

Reconciliation of heritage assets 2015          
 

       Opening Revaluation  Total 
 

       balance increase/(decr    
 

        ease)    
 

Art Collections, antiquities and exhibits     3,485,273 383,227  3,868,500  
 

Reconciliation of heritage assets 2014 

          

         
 

       Opening Revaluation  Total 
 

       balance increase/(decr    
 

        ease)    
 

Art Collections, antiquities and exhibits     3,259,693 225,580  3,485,273  
 

             

 
Revaluations 
 
Art collections 
 
Heritage assets have been revalued to market value. Heritage assets are stated at the revalued amount of R 3 868 500 

(2014: R 3 485 273 reinstated). An independent valuator, EGN Bezuidenhout with registration number 1204/3, was used for 

the revaluation performed on 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014. 
 
The revaluation surplus relating to the heritage asset is as follows: 
 
 
Opening balance 570,539 344,959 

 

Change/movement 383,227 225,580 
 

Closing balance 
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9. Deferred revenue   
 

At amortised cost   
 

Conditional government grants 46,858,262 42,287,394 
 

The balance comprise qualifying capital expenditure on projects that have not been   
 

completed at the end of the financial year.   
 

Current liabilities 

   

  
 

At amortised cost 46,858,262 42,287,394 
 

10.  Payables from exchange transactions 

   

  
 

Bonus accrual 456,709 497,484 
 

Deposits received 374,985 100,980 
 

Leave pay provision 861,567 960,832 
 

Payments received in advanced 425,824 425,824 
 

Sundry creditors 362,657 85,365 
 

Trade payables 6,312,902 1,384,953 
 

     

  8,794,644 3,455,438 
 

11.  Unspent conditional grants and receipts   
 

Unspent conditional grants and receipts comprises of:   
 

Unspent conditional grants and receipts   
 

Capital Grant - Branding Theatre 175,613 175,613 
 

Capital Grant - Motorized Lighting Batten (100% completed) 116,265 116,265 
 

Capital Grant - PACOFS Main Entrance (10% Completed) 557,848 694,220 
 

Capital Grant - Revamp Andre Huguenet 413,466 413,466 
 

Capital Grant - Sand du Plessis - Air conditioning (60% Completed) 1,239,071 5,673,568 
 

Capital Grant - Sand Plumbing (100% Completed) 80,000 80,000 
 

Capital Grant - Upgrade Sand Video Monitor (100% Complete) 116,141 116,141 
 

Operational Grant - Artistic Development - 1,051,774 
 

Capital Grant - Incubator project 5,000,000 - 
 

     

  7,698,404 8,321,047 
 

Movement during the year   
 

Balance at the beginning of the year 8,321,047 9,910,123 
 

Additions during the year 5,083,333 4,370,824 
 

Transfer to deffered revenue (4,570,868) (3,975,969) 
 

Income recognition during the year (1,135,108) (1,983,931) 
 

     

  7,698,404 8,321,047 
 

12. Employee benefit obligations   
 

Post-employment medical benefit   
 

 
The post- employment medical benefit is actuarially valued every year by an independent valuator. The most recent 

valuation was performed by ABSA Health Care Consultants (Pty) Ltd on 31 March 2015 and reflects a liability of R 8 727 

000 (2014: R 8 498 000). The valuation as at 31 March 2015 reflects the reasonable value of the post-employment medical  
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aid liability as at 31 March 2015. 
 
In accordance with IAS19 the actuarial surplus was recognised in full during the year under review. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

Page | 110 
 
 

 

 
 
Performing Arts Centre of the Free State  
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2015 
 

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 
 
 
Figures in Rand 2015 2014 
   

12.  Employee benefit obligations (continued)   

Changes in the present value of the medical benefit obligation are as follows:   

Opening balance 8,498,000 8,848,385 
Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance 229,000 (350,385) 
   

 8,727,000 8,498,000 

Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance   

Current service cost 158,000 167,000 
Interest cost 694,000 603,000 
Actuarial (gains) losses (142,000) (635,385) 
Contribution payments (481,000) (485,000) 
   

 229,000 (350,385) 

Key assumptions used   

Assumptions used at the reporting date:   

Continuation at retirement 100.00 % 100.00 % 
Discount rates used 8.01 % 8.40 % 
Expected increase in healthcare costs 7.17 % 7.42 % 
Proportion married at retirement 85.00 % 85.00 % 
Expercted average retirement age 60.00 % 60.00 % 
Normal retirement age 60 60 
 60 60 
Spouse age gap 3 3 
 
PACOFS expects to make a contribution of R 507 000 (2014: R 517 000) to the defined medical benefit plan during the next 

financial year. 
 
There are currently no long- term assets set aside in respect of PACOFS' post-employment health care liabilities. Therefore 

no assumptions specifically relating to assets have been made. 
 
Defined contribution plan 
 
The pension plan is a multi- employer plan and is actuarially valued every year by an independent valuator. The most 

recent valuation was performed by Simeka Consultants & Actuaries (Pty) Ltd on 31 March 2013. 
 
The assets of the fund are not pooled. It is not possible for a participating employer to account for the fund as a defined 

benefit plan since the assets held in respect of each employer is not identified separately. As a result the plan is accounted 

for as a defined contribution plan. 
 
The actuarial valuation determined that the contribution plan was in a sound financial position at 31 March 2013 and that 

there is no outstanding liability in respect of the contribution shortfall and past service deficit. 
 
 
13.  Financial instruments disclosure 
 
Categories of financial instruments 
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2015 
 
 
 
 
Financial assets 
 

At fair value  At amortised     Total  
cost  

Receivables from exchange transactions -       277,912       277,912 
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. Financial instruments disclosure (continued)    
Cash and cash equivalents 16,983,549 - 16,983,549 
     

  16,983,549 277,912 17,261,461 

Financial liabilities    

   At amortised Total 
   cost  

Defferred revenue  46,858,262 46,858,262 
Payables from exchange transactions  8,794,646 8,794,646 
Unspent conditional grants and receipts  7,698,404 7,698,404 
     

   63,351,312 63,351,312 

2014     

Financial assets    

  At fair value At amortised Total 
   cost  

Receivables from exchange transactions - 165,946 165,946 
Cash and cash equivalents 11,719,725 - 11,719,725 
     

  11,719,725 165,946 11,885,671 

Financial liabilities    

   At amortised Total 
   cost  

Defferred revenue  42,287,394 42,287,394 
Payables from exchange transactions  3,455,440 3,455,440 
Unspent conditional grants and receipts  8,321,047 8,321,047 
     

   54,063,881 54,063,881 

14. Revenue    

Sale of goods  645,686 1,174,499 
Income from productions  670,425 869,171 
Other income  1,319,489 1,292,972 
Interest received - Investment  336,971 870,406 
Government grants & subsidies  38,825,108 37,470,931 
     

   41,797,679 41,677,979 

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services   
are as follows:    

Sale of goods  645,686 1,174,499 
Rendering of services  670,425 869,171 
Other income  1,319,489 1,292,972 
Interest received - Investment  336,971 870,406 
     

   2,972,571 4,207,048 
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The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as   
follows:    

Taxation revenue    

Transfer revenue    

Government grants & subsidies  38,825,108 37,470,931 
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15. Cost of sales   
 

Rendering of services   
 

Catering 398,691 1,235,040 
 

Liquor 281,441 361,700 
 

     

  680,132 1,596,740 
 

16. Other income   
 

Advertising income - 14,520 
 

Bad debts recovered 4,430 5,316 
 

Handling fees earned 61,788 49,223 
 

Insurance income 18,312 55,690 
 

Marketing commission received 408,942 288,365 
 

Rental of halls and equipment 826,016 879,858 
 

     

  1,319,488 1,292,972 
 

17. Investment revenue   
 

Interest revenue   
 

Bank  336,971 870,406 
 

18.  Government grants and subsidies 

   

  
 

Operating grants   
 

DAC grant (operating) 37,690,000 35,487,000 
 

DAC financial assistance grant (artistic development programme) 1,051,774 750,000 
 

Touring venture sponsorship 83,333 - 
 

     

  38,825,107 36,237,000 
 

Capital grants 
   

  
 

Government grants (capital) - 1,233,931 
 

     

  - 1,233,931 
 

     

  38,825,107 37,470,931 
 

 
Other governmental assistance 
 
The Performing Arts Centre of the Free State is housed in a building that is the property of the Department of Public Works. 

The Sand du Plessis Theatre as well as all the office space form part of the building. The use of the building (theatre and 

office space) is provided free of charge.
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19.  Employee related costs   

Basic salary 15,942,814 14,483,228 
Annual bonus 1,160,504 1,062,020 
Contract personnel 535,237 699,118 
Post-employment medical benefit (income)/expense 229,000 (350,385) 
Housing benefits and allowances 841,560 788,816 
Leave payouts 25,131 300,659 
Medical aid - company contributions 382,813 359,673 
Medical aid allowances 1,733,414 1,686,499 
Overtime payments 117,097 2,750 
PACOFS pension contributions 2,456,193 2,367,080 
UIF 144,733 142,936 
Workmens Compensation 77,279 72,643 
   

 23,645,775 21,615,037 
 
Key management      

2015 Basic salary Annual bonus Pension Medical and Total 
    Other  

Macholo, TJ (CEO)* 1,076,297 74,691 88,733 1,785 1,241,506 
Salimani, NS 417,073 34,156 40,577 1,785 493,591 
Mofokeng, JM (Artistic Director)* 543,017 44,651 88,410 1,785 677,863 
Alexander, RR 487,017 26,595 52,658 1,785 568,055 
Kabi, M 116,292 26,601 16,460 446 159,799 
Tlhogo, LE 406,835 33,303 39,564 1,785 481,487 
Ndiwa, KJ 417,264 34,172 67,661 1,785 520,882 
Geyer, AH 446,309 - 72,453 53,909 572,671 
Zondi, MF 417,264 34,172 67,661 3,750 522,847 
Moeketsane, PP 476,461 - 77,428 1,785 555,674 
Leeuw, JS 364,991 29,816 59,035 89,013 542,855 
      

 5,168,820 338,157 670,640 159,613 6,337,230 

2014 Basic salary Annual bonus Pension Medical and Total 
    other  

Macholo, TJ 859,027 42,638 79,463 1,785 982,913 
Mofokeng, JM 131,616 - 21,420 446 153,482 
Alexander, RR 470,465 25,215 49,926 1,785 547,391 
Kabi, M 389,670 31,872 63,108 1,785 486,435 
Ndiwa, KJ 400,712 32,793 64,929 1,785 500,219 
Leeuw, JS 348,439 28,437 56,304 80,350 513,530 
Geyer, AH 429,757 - 69,722 48,797 548,276 
Zondi, MF 400,712 32,793 64,929 1,785 500,219 
Moeketsana, PP 459,936 - 74,697 1,785 536,418 
Salimani, NS 267,014 - 32,449 1,190 300,653 
Tlhogo, LE 162,618 - 15,802 744 179,164 
      

 4,319,966 193,748 592,749 142,237 5,248,700 
 
* Note:  
Mr.T.J. Macholo was appointed as CEO effective 2 January 2014 after acting in this position. 

Mr.J.M. Mofokeng was appointed as the Artistic Director effective 2 January 2014. 
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20.  Finance costs 
 
Other interest paid - 360 
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21.  General expenses 
 
Accounting fees  
Advertising 
Auditors remuneration 
Bad debts 
Bank charges 
Capital expenditure 
Cleaning 
Computer expenses 
Consulting fees 
Cost of sales 
Entertainment 
Flowers 
Fuel and oil 
Insurance 
Marketing 
Medical expenses 
Motor vehicle expenses 
Other operating expenses 
Pest control 
Postage and courier 
Printing and stationery 
Production expenses - PACOFS 
Protective clothing 
Operating lease rentals 
Security 
Subscriptions and membership fees 
Telephone and fax 
Training 
Travel and accommodation - Local  
Utilities 
 

 
22.  Operating deficit 
 
Operating deficit for the year is stated after accounting for the following: 
 
(Loss) gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 

Amortisation on intangible assets  
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 

Employee costs 

 
 

285,000 359,100 
79,623 52,738 

1,311,235 1,623,115 
(21,885) (186) 
148,362 126,813 

7,382 207,686 
297,714 214,564 
367,848 279,205 

1,680,457 1,295,234 
680,132 1,596,740 

70,393 74,238 
5,102 300 

61,570 44,785 
294,609 280,623 
463,387 553,387 

45,029 - 
593,912 626,895 
347,710 261,894 

44,553 91,762 
4,241 3,320 

296,791 258,183 
4,463,882 7,867,248 

104,129 85,640 
118,243 130,078 

1,212,546 1,301,704 
89,666 48,433 

421,857 448,513 
138,536 135,526 
427,278 651,635 

2,856,096 3,028,479 
  

16,895,398 21,647,652 
 
 
 
 
 

(193,961) 11,116  
150,056 2,957,481 

3,421,434 986,415 
23,645,775 21,615,038 

 
23.  Auditors' remuneration   

External auditors 1,131,836 1,293,689 
Internal audit 179,400 329,426 
   

 1,311,236 1,623,115 
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24.  Cash generated from (used in) operations   

Deficit (3,205,872) (6,393,211) 
Adjustments for:   

Depreciation and amortisation 3,571,490 3,943,896 
Gain (loss) on sale of assets and liabilities 193,961 (11,116) 
Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities 229,000 (350,385) 
Movements in reserve 463,365 170 
Changes in working capital:   

Inventories (68,848) (204,032) 
Receivables from exchange transactions (111,967) 113,688 
Payables from exchange transactions 5,339,204 505,516 
Unspent conditional grants and receipts (622,643) (3,541) 
    

  5,787,690 (2,399,015) 

25. Commitments   

Authorised capital expenditure   

Authorised operational expenditure   

Already contracted for but not provided for   
 Internal audit services - 12,548 
 Operational services 3,527,775 1,058,247 
    

  3,527,775 1,070,795 

Operating leases - as lessee (expense)   

Minimum lease payments due   
- within one year 76,858 68,190 
- in second to fifth year inclusive 91,532 - 

    

  168,390 68,190 
 
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the entity for the use of digital copiers/printers. Leases are 

negotiated for a term of three years. The monthly installments remain fixed over the contract term with 0% escalation. 
 
The leases are not cancellable and expire on the following dates:  
Rental of 2 AX 2301 Digital Copier / Printer - Expiry Date: 30 September 2014 
Rental of 1 Roland XC 540 Printer / Cutter - Expiry Date: 30 June 2014 Rental 
of 2 MXM 382 Digital Copier / Printer - Expiry Date: 31 August 2017. Rental of 
1 MX182 Digital Copier / Printer - Expiry Date: 31 August 2017. Rental of 15 
Oil Mops - Expiry Date: 31 August 2016  
No sublease contracts existed for the reporting period. 
No contingent rental agreements exist for the reporting period. 
The future minimum lease payments payable under non-cancellable operating leases are set out as above. 
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26.  Contingencies 
 
2015:  
An arbitration award had been made by the CCMA against PACOFS in 1 individual case. PACOFS approached the Labour 

Court to set aside the award and this was unopposed. The arbitration award amounts to R169 548. A final outcome has not 

been finalised. 
 
An arbitration award had been made by the CCMA against PACOFS in 1 individual case. PACOFS approached the Labour 

Court to set aside the award and this was unopposed. The arbitration award amounts to R302 691. A final outcome has not 

been finalised. 
 
An arbitration award had been made by the CCMA against PACOFS in 1 individual case. PACOFS approached the Labour 

Court to set aside the award. The arbitration award amounts to R31,872.46. The matter has subsequently been settled and 

the appplication to the Labour Court has been withdrawn. 
 
Legal action has been instituted against the entity by one of its service providers. The outcome of the legal action is 

uncertain at year end but the entity estimates the potential loss to amount to R138 473. 
 
2014:  
An arbitration award had been made by the CCMA against PACOFS in 1 individual case. PACOFS approached the Labour 

Court to set aside the award and this was unopposed. The arbitration award amounts to R169 548. A final outcome has not 

been finalised. 
 
An unfair labour practice dispute against PACOFS was referred to the CCMA. The issue is set down for conciliation on the 

22nd April 2014. A final outcome has not been finalised. 
 
An unfair labour practice dispute against PACOFS was referred to the CCMA. The issue was set down for arbitration on the 

8th of April 2014. A final award of R 31,872.46 was made by the CCMA. 
 
27.  Related parties 
 
Relationships  
Board members Refer to members' report note 28 
Ultimate controling entity Department of Arts and Culture (DAC) 
Government department Department of Education  

Department of Public Works 
 
Members of key management Macholo, TJ  

Salimani, NS 
Alexander, RR 
Kabi, M 
Ndiwa, KJ 
Tlhogo, LE 
Geyer, AH 
Zondi, MF 
Moeketsane, PP 
Mofokeng, JM 
Leeuw, JS 

 
The Performing Arts Centre of the Free State is housed in a building that is the property of the Department of Public Works. 

The building includes the Sand du Plessis Theatre as well as all the office space. The use of the building (theatre and office 

space) is provided free of charge. 
 
The DAC can have a significant influence on the control of PACOFS due to the material nature of the grants paid by the 
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27.  Related parties (continued)   

Related party balances   

Amounts included in Trade receivable (Trade Payable) regarding related parties   
Department of Education - 14,310 
DAC 132,494 49,161 
Department of Public Works - Government Garage (146,164) (62,891) 
Department of Public Works - (245,306) 

Related party transactions   

Government grants and subsidies   
DAC (Operational grant) 37,690,000 35,487,000 
DAC (Capital Works) - 1,233,931 
DAC Sposorships 1,135,107 750,000 

General expenses   
Department of Public Works (Utilities) (2,856,096) (3,028,479) 
Department of Public Works (Motor vehicle rentals) (527,637) (597,956) 
Study fees paid on behalf of key management (24,750) (43,294) 
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28. Members' emoluments     

Non-Executive     

2015      

  Emoluments Other Total 
   benefits*   

Prof. S. Mahlomaholo (Chairperson) - - -  
Mrs. O.R. Mochware (Deputy Chairperson) - - -  
Mr. T. Segopolo 2,048 20 2,068  
Mr. Z. Mkiva 1,024 10 1,034  
Mr. C.J.T. Wing 2,048 20 2,068  
Mrs. M.A.D. Mnumzana 2,048 20 2,068  
Mrs. S.F.S Makhathini 2,040 20 2,060  
Mr. B. Mathibela - - -  
Mr. R. Rashama (Chairperson) - - -  
Adv. J.B. Mthembu - - -  
Mr. M.M. Sefantsi - - -  
Mrs. M. Thomasse-Pieterse 1,136 11 1,147  
Mr. W. Chakele 2,160 22 2,182  
Mr. T. Plaaitjie 2,048 20 2,068  
Mr. T. Mongake - - -  
Mr. M.P. Moloi 2,160 - 2,160  
      

  16,712 143 16,855  

2014      

  Emoluments Other Total 
   benefits*   

Mr. R. Rashama (Chairperson) 11,304 113 11,417  
Adv. J.B. Mthembu 16,384 164 16,548  
Mr. M.M. Sefantsi 1,024 10 1,034  
Mrs. M. Thomasse-Pieterse 1,024 10 1,034  
Mr. W. Chakele 2,048 20 2,068  
Mr. T. Plaaitjie 3,660 35 3,695  
Mr. T. Mongake 6,084 61 6,145  
Mr. M.P. Moloi 2,048 20 2,068  
      

  43,576 433 44,009  

* Other benefits comprise only of UIF contributions.     

29. Change in estimate     

Property, plant and equipment     
 
In the current period management have revised the estimated remaing useful lives of all items of property, plant and 

equipment to be between 1 and 5 years. The change in the estimated remaining useful lives of all items of property, plant 

and equipment has resulted in the following change in the depreciation charge for the year: 
 
Depreciation: Property, plant and equipment  

 

According to initial estimated useful life 3,458,852 
 

According to re-estimate useful life (2,691,677) 
 

Decrease in depreciation charge 
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30.  Prior period errors 
 
The following errors were corrected in terms of GRAP 3: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. 
 
30.1 Prior period error - Understatement of Compensation Commissioner Liability:  
During the period under review, it was noted that the entity has a previously unrecognised liability with respect to the 

Workmans Compensation Commissioner. The Comparative statements for 2013/14 financial year have been restated. The 

effect of the corrections of errors is summarised below: 
 
Statement of Financial Position:   

Increase in payables from exchange transactions  (142,035) 
Decrease in accumulated surplus  69,392 
Statement of Financial Performance:   

Increase in employee related costs - 72,643 
 
 
30.2 Prior period error - Understatement of merchant collection commission (SAMBA):  
During the period under review, it was noted that mechant collection commission (SAMBA) was incorrectly provided for. The 

comperative statements for 2013/14 financial year have been restated. The effect of the corrections of errors is summarised 

below: 
 
Statement of financial position   

Decrease in Sundry debtors - (3,411) 
Statement of financial performance   

Increase in general expenses - 3,411 

30.3 Prior period error - Heritage assets not included in the Fixed Asset Register (FAR)  
During the period under review, it was noted that the entity had omitted various heritage assets from the FAR at 31 March 

2013. The comparative statements for 2013/14 financial year have been restated. The effect of the corrections of errors is 

summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position   

Increase in heritage assets - 1,208,273 
Increase in accumulated surplus - (1,208,273) 

 
30.4 Prior period error - SAMRO accrual account misstated:  
During the period under review it was noted that the entity had a previously unrecognised liability with respect to the South 

Africa Music Rights Organisation. The comparative statements for 2013/2014 financial year have been restated. The effect 

of the correction of the error(s) is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position   

Increase in payables from exchange transactions - (20,826) 
Decrease in accumulated surplus - 20,826 

 
30.5 Prior period error - Musical instruments depreciated beyond their residual values, misstatement of 

unspent grants and deferred revenue:  
During the period under review it was noted that the musical instruments were incorrectly depreciated beyond their 
residual values at 31 March 2013. Furthermore it was noted that deferred revenue and unspent grants and receipts were 

misstated due to overspending on various capital projects during the 2013 and 2014 financial years. The comparative 
statements for 2013/2014 financial year have been restated. The effect of the correction of the error(s) is summarised 
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below: 
 
 
 
 
Statement of financial position   

Decrease accumulated depreciation on musical instruments - 1,878,803 
Increase in defferred revenue - (20,001,786) 
Decrease in unspent grants and receipts - 20,001,786 
Increase opening accumulated surplus - (1,701,666) 
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30.  Going concern (continued)   

Statement of financial performance  - 
Decrease in depreciation expense        (177,137) 
 
 
30.6 Prior period error - Asset management policy capitalisation threshold not in line with GRAP17 :  
During the period under review it was noted that the entity's asset management policy stated that items of property, plant 

and equipment with a cost price of R5000 or less would be expensed rather than being recognised as an asset. This has 

been the entity's practice since 2011.The comparative statements for 2013/2014 financial year have been restated. The 
effect of the correction of the error(s) is summarised below: 
 
Statement of financial position   

Increase in the cost price of property, plant and equipment - 7,115,423 
Increase in accumulated depreciation of property, plant and equipment - (3,063,573) 
Increase in opening accumulated surplus - (4,538,612) 
Statement of financial performance - - 
Increase in depreciation - 1,069,796 
Decrease in general expenditure - (583,034) 
   

 - - 
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31.  Risk management 
 
Financial risk management 
 
The entity’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, 

cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. 
 
The entity’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise 

potential adverse effects on the entity’s financial performance. Risk management is carried out by a central treasury 

department (entity treasury) under policies approved by the board of members. Entity treasury identifies, evaluates and 

hedges financial risks in close co-operation with the entity’s operating units. The board of members provides written 

principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit 

risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity. 
 
Liquidity risk 
 
The entity’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk 

through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities. 
 
Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities are monitored. 
 
The table below analyses the entity’s financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity 

groupings based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The 

amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their 

carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant. 
 
At 31 March, 2015 Less than 1 Between 1 Between 2 Over 5 years 
 year and 2 years and 5 years  
Deferred revenue 46,858,262 - - - 
Trade and other payables 8,794,646 - - - 
Unspent conditional grants 7,698,404 - - - 
 
At 31 March, 2014 Less than 1 Between 1 Between 2 Over 5 years 
 year and 2 years and 5 years  
Deferred revenue 42,287,394 - - - 
Trade and other payables 3,455,440 - - - 
Unspent conditional grants 8,321,047 - - - 
 
Credit risk 
 
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The entity 

only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party. 
 
Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. No collateral is required in respect of financial assets. 

Management has a credit policy in place. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an ongoing basis. 
Credit valuations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. If customers are independently 

rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the 

customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on 
internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. 

Sales to retail customers are settled in cash or using major credit cards. Credit guarantee insurance is purchased when 

deemed appropriate. 
 
Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:   

Financial instrument 2015 2014 
Short-term deposits 9,480,486 11,379,797 
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Bank balances 7,352,764 119,106 
Cash on hand 17,200 88,365 
Other cash and cash equivalents 133,099 132,456 
Receivables from exchange transactions 277,912 165,946 
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31.  Risk management (continued) 
 
No significant concentrations of credit risks were identified on 31 March 2015. The maximum exposure to credit risk is 

represented by the carrying amount of each class of financial asset in the statement of financial position. 
 
Market risk 
 
Fair values risk 
 
The fair values of trade and other payables have been recalculated, all other financial instruments are approximate to 

carrying amounts reflected in the statement of financial position. 
 
Interest rate risk 
 
As the entity has no significant interest-bearing assets, the entity’s income and operating cash flows are substantially 

independent of changes in market interest rates. 
 
The entity does not limit its risk in respect of interest rate changes. Interest rate fluctuations will directly impact on the 

entity's results. 
 
32.  Going concern 
 
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This 

basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of 

liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 
 
The management of the entity have concluded that the existence of a combination of circumstances represent a material 

uncertainty that casts significant doubt about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern. nevertheless after making 

enquiries about considering the uncertainties described below, the management of the entity have a reasonable expectation 

that the entity will have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For these 

reasons they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual financial statements of the entity. 
 
The following analysis supports the going concern assumption:  
While the management of the entity have instituted measures to preserve cash, control overheads, increase revenue and 
secure additional funding the following circumstances create material uncertainties over the future trading results and cash 
flows.  
- The entity's current liabilities exceed its current assets by R44 698 856. It should be noted that non-current assets 
amounting to R46 858 262 (2014 - R42 287 394) will be offset against these balances upon transfer to the relevant 
custodian. 
- The current economic enviroment is challenging and the entity has reported significant operating loss for the year. 
- Management considers that the outlook present significant challenges in terms of enhancing the quality earnings, 
increaseing revenue volumes and well controlling input costs. 
- The entity's operational grants funding does not cover the entity's operating costs and without increasing the quality od 
revenue from operations continued deficits are likely. 
- Potential decrease in the total net asset value upon transfer of capital works projects to the Department of Public Works 

via Gijama Act. 
 
In response to the indicators listed above management have initiated the following:  
- Applied zero based budgeting for the 2014/2015 - 2016/2017 financial years. 
- Outlined various initiatives as contained in the entity's Strategic and Turnaround Plans to boost revenue adn the quality of 

revenue. 
- Initiate discutions for the ring fencing of additional operational funding to support its developmental mandate and seeking 

additional operational funding from DAC. 



 

Page | 130 
 
 

 
The following Key rations were also considered during the going concern assessment:  
 
 
 
- Total Assets R 81 103 611 (2014: R 72 755 327) exceeds total liabilities R 72 078 312 (2014: R 62 561 881) 
- The entity has accummulated reserves of R 7 475 712 (2014: R 9 490 451). 
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33.  Events after the reporting date 
 
Subsequent to year end the entity's CEO has been placed on special leave by the Council effective 17th August 2015. 
 
34.  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
 
Opening balance 2,408,661 2,394,668 
Fruitless and wasteful - current year 12,297 13,993 
     

  2,420,958 2,408,661 

Analysis of expenditure awaiting condonation:    
Current year 12,297 13,993  
Prior years 2,408,661 2,394,668  
     

  2,420,958 2,408,661  
 
Details of fruitless and wasteful expenditure - 2015   

 

 Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings   
 

Expenses incurred in vain The incidents disclosed are under investigation. 12 297  
 

 No disciplinary steps instituted.   
 

Details of fruitless and wasteful expenditure - 2014   
 

Salaries paid to employees 
Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings   

 

   
 

under suspension The matter has been settled and the employee 13 993  
 

 has resigned.   
 

35.  Irregular expenditure    
 

Opening balance  34,158,730 29,286,516 
 

Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year 7,665,604 4,872,214 
 

     

  41,824,334 34,158,730 
 

 
In addition the entity is investigating possible irregular expenditure which may result from the utilisation of conditional grants 

for purposes not intended for. 
 
Analysis of expenditure awaiting condonation per age classification 
 
Current year 7,665,604 4,872,214  

 

Prior years 34,158,730 29,286,516  
 

      

  41,824,334 34,158,730  
 

Details of irregular expenditure – 2015 
Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings 

  
 

   
 

No competitive bidding process was followed as The incidents are still under investigation / awaiting 5,756,473  
 

required in TR16A6.4. possible condonation.   
 

Three quotations not obtained as required The incidents are still under investigation / awaiting 1,779,125  
 

 possible condonation.   
 

Contravention of Teasury Circular 1 of 2013/14 The incidents are still under investigation / awaiting 130,006  
 

 possible condonation.   
 

      

   7,665,604  
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35.  Irregular expenditure (continued)    
 

Details of irregular expenditure – 2014 
Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings 

  
 

   
 

No competitive bidding process was followed as The incidents are still under investigation / awaiting 3,821,522  
 

required in TR16A6.4. possible condonation.   
 

Three quotations not obtained as required The incidents are still under investigation / awaiting 1,050,692  
 

 possible condonation.   
 

     

  4,872,214  
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36.  Reconciliation between budget and statement of financial performance 
 
Reconciliation of budget surplus/deficit with the surplus/deficit in the statement of financial performance: 
 
Net deficit per the statement of financial performance (3,205,872) (6,393,211) 

 

Adjusted for:   
 

Fair value adjustments 193,961 (11,116) 
 

Total revenue - (under)/over budgeted 10,958,672 10,894,890 
 

Total expenditure - (under)/over budgeted (7,946,761) (4,490,563) 
 

Net surplus per approved budget 
   

- - 
 

 
37.  Actual operating expenditure versus budgeted operating expenditure 
 
Detailed below are explanations of the significant variances between the actual expenditure versus budgeted expenditure 

as detailed in the Statement of Comparison between Budget and Actual: 
 
X1 - Conservative budget estimate exceeded by the actual  
X2 - Insignificant variance. 
X 3 -Variance due to unrealistic budgted revenue. 
X4 - Under realised interest earned is attributable to the reduction in operational bank balances. 
X5 - Variance as a result of sponsorships / operational grants received in the prior year. 
X6 - Savings realised due to resigantions, retirements and general staff turnover.  
X7 - Saving due to a change in estimate based on the condition of assets at year end. 
X8 - Insignificant variance.  
X9 - Expenditure containment measures implemented coupled with the general decrease in operations. 

X10 - Insignificant variance.
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